
AMENDED 
Administrative-Finance Committee 

August 4, 2014 
6:00 p.m. - Conference Room 

1. Call to Order 

2. Public Comment 

3. New Business 

a. Discussion- Draft FYE April30, 2014 Audit 

b. Minutes - April 7, 2014 

c. Minutes - July 7, 2014 

4. Other Business 

5. Next Meeting- Tuesday, September 2, 2014 

6. Adjournment 



TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 

CITY OF DARIEN 
MEMO 

Administrative/Finance Committee Members 
Bryon D. V ana, City Administrator 
July 30, 2014 
August 4 Committee Meeting -Draft Audit Presentation 

The committee will review the draft audit report, management letter, and st:afl's response to the 
management letter for FYE 4-30-14. The auditors will attend the committee meeting and review the 
report and answer any questions. 

• 



CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

AUDITOR'S COMMUNICATION TO THE 
HONORABLE MAYOR AND 

MEMrnERSOFTHECITYCOUNC~ 

For the Year Ended 
April30, 2014 

~Sikich. 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 



CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 
AUDITOR'S COMMUNICATION TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR 

AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Page(s) 

COVER LETTER............................................................................................................. 1 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH 
GOVERNANCE............................................................................................................. 2-10 

• Adjusting Journal Entries 
• Passed Adjustments 

MANAGEMENT LETTER.............................................................................................. 11-16 

BENCHMARKING AND TRENDS REPORT............................................................... 17-18 

FIRM PROFILE 



______ __.:> 2014 

The Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
City of Darien 
1702 Plainfield Road 
Darien, Illinois 60561 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

As part of our audit process we are required to have certain communications with those charged 
with governance at the beginning of our audit process and at the conclusion of the audit. Those 
communications include information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit, as well 
as other information required by auditing standards. Our communication at the beginning of our 
audit process along with our questionnaire regarding consideration of fraud in a financial 
statement audit was sent to you on May 2, 2014. 

In addition, auditing standards require the communication of internal control related matters to 
those charged with governance. Our management letter, as well as a listing of future 
pronouncements that may affect the City, are enclosed within this document. 

In today' s accountability-driven environment, performance measurement is more important than 
ever. We have prepared an analysis of selected key ratios for the City as well as benchmark data 
for financial statement users to better assess the City's relative financial condition. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor, City Council and management of 
the City of Darien and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Sincerely, 

SikichLLP 
By: James R. Savio, CPA, MAS 
Partner 
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September~ 2014 

The Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Conncil 
City of Darien 
1702 Plainfield Road 
Darien, Illinois 60561 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

We have audited the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, 
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Darien, Illinois for 
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014 and the related notes to financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic fmancial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated September~ 2014. Professional standards require that we provide you with information 
about our responsibilities nnder generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information in our letter to you dated April 7, 2014. Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate acconnting policies. In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of acconnting policies and their application. The significant acconnting policies 
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new acconnting policies 
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended 
Apri130, 2014. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there 
is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Acconnting estimates are an integral part of the fmancial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain acconnting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. We noted no particularly sensitive 
estimates made by management during our audit of the fmancial statements. 

- 2 ~ 
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City of Darien 
September_·_.·_. 2014 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements 
of the financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. In addition, a list 
of material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 
is attached. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards defme a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated September_, 2014. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or 
a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those financial 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Darien, Illinois' 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

- 3 -
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City of Darien 
September~ 2014 

Other Matters 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information as listed in the 
table of contents, which is required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules as listed in the table of contents, which accompany the financial statements but are not 
RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management 
and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section and supplemental data as listed in the 
table of contents, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or 
perform other procedures on this other information and we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on it. 

Restriction in Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor, City Council, management of the 
City of Darien, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

We appreciate the courtesies extended to us by the City. If you have any questions regarding the 
purpose of this letter or the requirement mentioned, please contact us. 

Sincerely, 

SikichLLP 
By: James R. Savio, CPA, MAS 
Partner 

-4-
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Preliminary and Tentative 
City of Darien - 00 For Discussion Purposes Only 
YearEnd: Apnl30, 2014 

AdjUitlng Journal Entries 

Date: S/112013 To 413012014 

Number Date Name Account No Dtbit Credit 

AJE01 413012014 Fund Balance - CWJant 11-2190 11-CF 5,859.00 

AJE01 413012014 Fund Balance- Current 18-2190 18-DS -5,859.00 

AJE01 413012014 Transfer from Other Funds 11-Do-361211-DF -5,859.00 

AJE01 413012014 Transfer to Other Fund& 18-41-4605 18.(15 S,81i9.00 

To show reclassification of sUite selzu111 cash as transfer 

AJE02 4/30/20~4 Interest Payable 98-2002 98-G 10,04S.17 

AJE02 4130/2014 Unamortized Bond Premium 98-206598-G 3,268.28 

AJE02 413012014 Bank Loans Payable 98-2100 98.(; 16C,500.00 

AJE02 4130/2014 G.O. Bonds 2007A 98-2196 98.(; 410,000.00 

AJE02 413012014 2008 GO Bonds Payable 98-2197 98.(; 13S,OOO.OO 

AJE02 413012014 Amortizdon on Pl'entJm 98-4905 98.(; -3,268.28 

AJE02 4130/2014 Principal 98-50-5000 98.(; -705,500.00 

AJE02 413012014 Interest 98-50-5001 98.(; -10,045.17 

To reoord current ya• activity in the Gl TOAG 

AJE03 4130/2014 Now Acct -Republic Bank 02-1005 02-WF 200,000.00 

AJE03 4/30/2014 Now Acct -Republic Bani< 12-100512-WDF -200,000.00 

AJE03 413012014 UNAMORTIZED BOND DISCOUNT 12-122512-WDF -3,539.50 

AJE03 413012014 Unamortized Bond Premium 12-1226 12-WDF 13,397.00 

AJE03 413012014 Unamortized Loss on Refunding 12-122712-WDF -20,317.00 

AJE03 4130/2014 Interest Payable 12-2002 12-WDF 72.21 

AJE03 4130/2014 Bonds Payable 12-218412-WDF 200,000.00 

AJE03 4/3012014 Debt Retire-Water Refunding 02-50-4950 02-WF -200,000.00 

AJE03 413012014 Interest 12-51-4946 12-WDF -72.21 

AJE03 413012014 Amortization 12-51-4947 12-WDF 10,4S9.50 

To adjust the Water Fund far cun-ent year long-Wrm 

debtadMty 

AJED4 413012014 Water Bill Recelvable-\Jnbilled 02-1221 02-WF 261,576.85 

AJED4 4130/2014 Water Sales 02-D0-3310 02-WF -261,576.85 

To adjust receivable for unbilled Wiler revenue not 

adjusted by client 

AJE05 4/3012014 Deferred Revenue 25-2181 25-Ci ~3,805.20 

AJEOS 4130/2014 Miscellaneous Revenue 25-Do-3580 25-CI 83,805.20 

To record contribution revenue from a lesee to deferTed 

revenue for work not yet performed 

AJE06 4130/2014 Veh:cies/Equipment 99-1940 99-G 112,000.00 

AJE06 4130/2014 AID- Machl-y & Equipment 99-1990 99-G -250,227.52 

AJE06 413012014 AID- Buildings 99-1991 99-G -125,728.14 

AJE06 413012014 Depreciation - General Government 99-5000 99-G 51 ,034.00 

AJE06 413012014 Depreciation - P\*>Cic Safely 99-5001 99-G 161,144.56 

AJE06 413012014 Depreciation- Public Worlcs 99-5002 99-G 163,7n.os 

AJE06 4130/2014 Purch8S86 - Public Wort<s 99-50-5502 99-G -112,000.00 

To adjust depreciation fer Building & Equipment and 

purchases for equipment 

-5 -
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Preliminary and Tentative 
Number Date Nama Account No For IJJ~ssion P~es Only 

AJE07 413012014 Accounls Payable 02·2150 02-WF -24,785.75 

AJE07 413012014 Data Processing 02-50-4336 02-WF 24,785.75 

To Accrue for Dupage County Public 

Works meter read'ng bill for Mar-Apr 

AJE08 413012014 Operatlng- Republfc Bank 01-1000 01-GF 67,440.00 

AJED8 413012014 Operating- Republic Bank Q3.1 000 03-t.IFT ~7.440.00 

AJE08 413012014 Socicl Security 01-30-4110 01-GF -18,500.00 

AJE08 413012014 Medicare 01-30-4111 01-GF -4,350.00 

AJE08 413012014 I.M.R.F. 01-30-4115 01-GF -44,490.00 

AJE08 413012014 Social Security 03-60-4110 ()3.t.IFT 18.600.00 

AJEOB 413012014 Medicare 03-60-4111 03-MFT 4,350.00 

AJE08 413012014 I.M.R.F. 03-60-4115 03-MFT 44,490.00 

To allocate IMRF ~~>~penses to MFT Fund 

AJE09 413012014 DIS Bond Payable-Contractor 02·2188 02-WF -2,576.00 

AJE09 413012014 DIS Bond Payable-Contractor 98-2188 98-G 1,438.00 

AJE09 413012014 Change In IMRF NPO 02-50-4116 02-WF 2,576.00 

AJE09 413012014 Change in IMRF NPO • GG 98-50-5601 98-G -1,336.00 

AJE09 413012014 Change in IMRF NPO • PW 98-50-5602 96-G 1,774.00 

AJE09 413012014 Change in IMRF NPO - PS 98-50-5603 98-G -1,876.00 

To record IMRF NPO adjustment 

AJE10 413012014 Prepaid Expenses 01·1300 01-GF 86.047.00 

AJE10 413012014 Consulting/Professional 01-40-4325 01-GF -86,047.00 

To reel ass a DuComm quarterly payment related to 

FY15 from an expense to a pre-paid expense in FY14 

AJE11 413012014 AID - Machinery & Equipment 02-1990 02-WF -335,144.03 

AJE11 413012014 Depreciation 02-10-4620 02-WF 335,144.03 

To adjust WF depreciation 

AJE12 413012014 AID • Infrastructure 99-1992 99-G -465,681.86 

AJE12 413012014 Deprecialion • Public Works 99-5002 99-G 465,681.86 

To adjust Infrastructure depreciation 

AJE13 413012014 lnvestrnenls in IRMA 01·1175 01-GF 50,989.00 

AJE13 413012014 IRMA Excess Surplus 01·2999 01-GF -50,969.00 

AJE13 413012014 lnvestrnenls In IRMA 02-1175 02-WF 13,298.00 

AJE13 413012014 Miscellaneous Revenue 02.{)0-3580 02-WF -13,298.00 

To record IRMA excess surplus allocation 

- 6 -
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PASSED ADJUSTMENTS 

Description 

Payroll expense was not accrued fur Admin or 
Community Develop. In FY13. Alljushnent to properly 
record liability· Dr. Expense Cr. Equity 

To record receivable for additional monthly rentals 

Totals 

City of Darien 
(CLIENT) 

For the Year Ended 4/30fl014 

All entries posted as Debit (Credit) 

Workpaper 
Reference 

L.l 

S.14 

Assets/ 
Deferred 
Outflows 

9,300 

(Liabilities)/ 
(Deferred 
Inflows) 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTNITtEs 

(OPINION UNIT) 

(Net 
Position/Fund 

Balance) 

(28,426) 

Change in Net 
Position/Fund 

Balance 

28,426 

(9,300) 

s===""9'"",3o..,o_ s _____ s ~~===<2..,8,!.::42=6=) s = = ====1=9,=12=-6-

-7-
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PASSED ADnJSTMENTS 

Description 

Current Effect of Prior Period Passed AJE's that 

have carried furward to Current Period 

Fiscal year 2013 water billing expense 
recognized in fiscal year 2014 

Totals 

City of Darien 
(CLIENT) 

For the Year Ended 4/30/2014 

All entries posted as Debit (Credit) 

Assets/ (Liabilities)/ 

Workpaper Deferred (Deferred 

Reference Outflows Inflows) 

$ $ 

K.lO 

$ 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVlTillS 

(OPINION UNIT) 

(Net 

Position/Fund 

Balance) 

25,473 

$ 

Change in Net 

Position/Fund 

Balance 

{25,473) 

$ ~~~~~$ ~~~~=$ ~~==2=56047=3~.$ ==,!,;(2;;;,5,6047;,;;3"") 

- 8 -
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PASSED ADJUSTMENTS 

Description 

CUrrent Effect of Prior Period Passed AJE's that 
have carried forward to Current Period 

Payroll expense was not accrued fur Admin or 
Community Develop. In FYI3. Adjustment to properly 
record liability. Dr. Expense Cr. Equity 

To record receivable for additional monthly rentals 

Totals 

City of Darien 
(CLIEN'l) 

Foc lhe Year Ended 4130/2014 

All entries posted as Debit (Credit) 

Worlcpaper 
Reference 

Assets/ 
Deferred 
Outflows 

(Liabilities)/ 

(Deferred 
Inflows) 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

GENERAL 
(OPINION UNIT) 

(Net 
Position/Fund 

Balance) 

Change in Net 
Position/Fund 

Balance 

_________ s ________ ~s _________ s ________ ~s ________ _ 

L.l (28,426) 28,426 

S.l4 9,300 (9,300) 

s ____ _.9.,3.ooms====------s ____ _.p.s.,4.26.)$--~~~9~,t~26~ 

-9-
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PASSED ADJUS1MENTS 

Description 

Current Effect of Prior Period Passed AJE's that 
have carried furward to Current Period 

Fiscal year 2013 water billing expense 
recognized in fiscal year 2014 

Totals 

City of Darien 
(CIJENT) 

For the Year Ended 413012014 

All entries posted as Debit (Credit) 

Workpaper 
Reference 

Assets/ 
Deferred 
Outflows 

(Liabilities)/ 

(Deferred 
Inflows) 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

WAIER 

(OPINION UNIT) 

(Net 
Position/Fund 

Balance) 

Change in Net 
Position/Fund 

Balance 

____ ...;s _____ s. ____ ...;s -----

K.lO 25,473 (25,473) 

s _____ s ~====s. ======2=5=.4=73=$ ==~(2,.5,=47=3,2 

- 10 -
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

MANAGEMENT LEITER 

April30, 2014 

!::S Sikich~ 
IS 



The Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
City of Darien 
1 702 Plainfield Road 
Darien, lllinois 60561 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

In planning and performing our audit of the governmental activities, the business type activities 
each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the related notes to financial 
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Darien, lllinois 
(the City) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2014, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered its internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the its internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited pwpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described below, we identified 
certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant deficiencies. In addition, 
we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls and 
operating efficiency. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be a material weakness. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that 
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

- 12 ~ 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Tills communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council 
and management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Naperville, lllinois 

-------' 2014 

- 13 -
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY 

We consider the following to be a significant deficiency in the City's internal controls. 

Proposed Audit Adjustments 

During our audit, we proposed several audit adjustments. Such audit adjustments were reviewed, 
approved, and recorded by management and included material adjustments to accounts receivable 
in the Water Operations Fund and capital assets of the City's governmental activities. Other 
proposed adjustments were immaterial individually but material in the aggregate which included 
adjustments to unearned revenues, prepaid expenses, and contribution revenues. We believe that 
year-end closing could be improved by performing a fmal review of adjusted trial balances to 
determine that all transactions have been recorded and posted. Management could review the 
transactions for completeness by scanning the ending balances and the transactions posted to 
each general ledger account to detect unusual entries or unexpected ending balances 

DEFICIENCY 

We consider the following to be a deficiency in the City's internal controls. 

Capital Assets 

During our audit of the City's capital asset records, we noted various errors within depreciation 
of infrastructure asset of the governmental activities of the City. Specifically, the errors noted 
included depreciation being taken on assets that were previously fully depreciated to a net book 
value of zero, and incorrect depreciation expense taken on specific assets. We noted in some 
instances depreciation expense was keyed in incorrectly as opposed to being calculated through a 
formula within the spreadsheet. Using formulas to calculate depreciation expense within the 
spreadsheet would help to eliminate such errors. Further, we recommend that the City perform a 
fmal review of capital asset records in order to potentially detect errors or miscalculations. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Future Accounting Pronouncements 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued a number of pronouncements that 
may impact the City in the future. 

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, replaces the requirements of 
Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures 
for Defined Contribution Plans, and Statement No. 50 as they relate to pension plans that are 
administered through trusts or similar arrangements meeting certain criteria. The Statement 
builds upon the existing framework for financial reports of defined benefit pension plans, which 
includes a statement of fiduciary net position (the amount held in a trust for paying retirement 
benefits) and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. Statement No. 67 enhances note 
disclosures and RSI for both defmed benefit and defmed contribution pension plans. Statement 
No. 67 also requires the presentation of new information about annual money-weighted rates of 
return in the notes to the fmancial statements and in 10-year RSI schedules. Statement No. 67 is 
applicable for the fiscal year ending April 3 0, 2015. 

- 14-
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

Future Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental 
Employers, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that 
provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet 
certain criteria. Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to 
recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first time, and to 
more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The 
Statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note 
disclosures and required supplementary infonnation (RSI). Statement No. 68 is applicable for the 
fiscal year ending April 30, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and 
disposals of government operations. Statement No. 69 is applicable for the fiscal year ending 
April30, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-Exchange Financial 
Guarantees, intends to improve accounting and fmancial reporting by state and local 
governments that extend and receive non-exchange fmancial guarantees. Statement No. 70 is 
applicable for the fiscal year ending April30, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 71 , Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, addresses an issue regarding 
application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state 
or local government employer or non-employer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension 
plan after the measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability. Statement 
No. 71 is applicable for the fiscal year ending April30, 2016. 

We will advise the City of any progress made by GASB in developing this and other future 
pronouncements that may have an impact on the financial position and results of operation of the 
City. 

• 15 -
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

APPENDIX A 
STATUS OF COMMENTS FROM APRIL 30, 2013 

DEFICIENCIES 

We consider the following to be deficiencies in the City's internal controls. 

1. Revenue Recognition 

The City has revenue recognition policies in accordance with GAAP; however certain 
instances were noted where the policies were not followed. Liquor license revenue for 
fiscal year 2014 was reported as revenue and receivable for fiscal year 2013. Also, the 
revenue for certain utility tax receipts was reported on a cash basis instead of on the 
modified accrual basis. In both cases we proposed adjustments, agreed to by the City, to 
correct the revenue recognition. We recommend the City examine all significant revenues 
to ensure compliance with its revenue recognition policies. 

Status- Comment considered implemented as of April30, 2014. 

2. Balance Sheet Accounts 

The City currently has several balance sheet accounts, both assets and liabilities, which are 
tracked for many unique transactions. It also maintains subsidiary ledgers in the form of 
Excel spreadsheets for each of these accounts supporting the balances on the general 
ledger. Many of these accounts have limited activity during the year. We further noted 
several liability accounts with debit balances and accounts with balances unadjusted from 
the prior year. We recommend the City consider consolidating some of the accounts with 
less activity into one account. Also, the City should develop a procedure to determine the 
frequency of the reconciliation of these accounts (e.g., monthly vs. quarterly). Finally, the 
City should ensure that proper management review of these accounts is done on a regular 
basis to determine any necessary action required on the accounts. 

Status - Comment considered implemented as of April30, 2014. 

3. Building Permits Reconciliation 

The community development department of the City maintains a system of tracking 
permits and refundable and nonrefundable fees. Currently, the finance department does not 
reconcile the general ledger to the report generated by the community development 
department. To ensure accurate reflection of revenues, receivables, and escrow liabilities in 
the fmancial statements, we recommend the finance department reconcile the report on a 
regular basis. 

Status - Comment still applicable as of April30, 2014. 

- 16 -
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Organization 
Sikich is a dynamic accounting, advisory, investment banking, technology and 

managed services firm with nearly 600 employees throughout the country. Founded in 
1982, we are now one of the country's Top 40 largest CPA firms and among the top 1% 

of all enterprise resource planning solution partners in the world. 

Industries 
Sikich provides services and solutions 

to a wide range of industries. We have 

devoted substantial resources to develop a 

significant base of expertise and 

experience in: 

• Agriculture 

• Construction 

• Government 

• Health Care 

• Higher Education 

• Manufacturing & Distribution 

• Not-for-Profit 

• Oilfield Services 

• Professional Services 

• Real Estate 

• Retail 

Statistics 
2013 Revenues $97M 

Total Partners . .. .. .. .. .. . . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . 88 

Total Employees ............................ 491 

Total Personnel .. ... 579 

Personnel count as of Dec. 31, 2013 

Sikich Total Revenues 

su-.- --~ ~ -~~ . ~~-·~-~~- .... _, __ ----- .. -···-

--............ . _ ... 
.......... 
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IJO.IIXI.IOI·· 

Awards 
• Inc. Magazine's Inc. 50015000: ranked 

4,627th fastest-growing private company 

nationally, 2013 

• Accounting Today Top 1 00 Firms: ranked 

40th nationally, 2013 

• Accounting Today Regional Leaders -Top 

Firms: Great Lakes: ranked 6th, 2013 

• Crain's Chicago Business Fast Fifty: 

ranked 49th, 2013 

• INSIDE Public Accounting Top 50 Largest 

Accounting Firms: ranked 

41st nationally, 2013 

• Accounting Today Top 100 Value Added 

Reseller: ranked 11th, 2013 

• Best Places to Work in Indiana, 2013 

• Best Places to Work in Illinois, 2013 

• Bob Scott's Top 100 Value Added 

Reseller: ranked 12th, 2013 

• Daily Herald Business Ledger Book of 

Lists: ranked 5th, "Accounting Firms;" 

Chicago Western Suburbs, 2013 

• Alfred P. Sloan Award for Excellence in 

Workplace Effectiveness & Flexibility, 2013 

• Bob Scott's Insights Value Added Reseller 

Stars, 2013 

• Springfield Business Journal Book of 

Lists: ranked 1st, "Accounting Firms;" 

Springfield, Illinois, 2013 

• Chicago Tribune's Chicago's 

Top Workplaces, 2013 

• Crain's Chicago Business Top 25 Firms: 

ranked 12th in Chicagoland, 2012 

• Top 50 Chicago Generation Y Employers, 

ranked 35th, 2012 

• American Graphic Design Awards, 2012 

• Microsoft Dynamics Inner Circle and 

President's Club, 2012 

u' ·-·- - •·• 

SERVICES 
n, ': .. ~ :· ... · .. '. 

• Accounting & Assurance 

, Business Valuation 

, Dis.pute Advisory 

· , ERP & CRM Software 

, Human Resources 
Consultmg 

, Insurance services 

, lnvestmentBanking& 
Corporate Finance 

, IT Services 

, Marketing & Public 
Relations 

, Retirement Planning 

, Supply Chain 

, Talent Acquisition 

, Tax Planning 

» Wealth Management 

···.· .. 
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~ Sikich~ 
877.279.1900 I info@slkich.com 

www.sikich.com 
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Sikich Snapshot 

Certifications 
All professional accounting staff with more than one year of experience have earned or are 

working toward earning the Certified Public Accountant designation. Slklch Is a member of 

the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants' Governmental Audit Quality Center 

and the Employee Benefit Plan Audit Quality Center. We adhere to the strict requirements 

of membership which assure we meet the highest standards of audit quality. In 2011, Sikich 

LLP received its 8th consecutive unmodified ("pass"} peer review report, the highest level of 

recognition conferred upon a public accounting firm for its quality control systems. 

Aficlosott·Pa rtner 
Golu Enterprise Resource Planning 

Microsoft Partner 
Sikich has earned a Microsoft ERP Gold competency; ranked among the top 1% of 

all Microsoft Dynamics partners worldwide; and carries the following certifications: 

• Microsoft Small Business Specialist 

• MCP (Microsoft Certified ProfessionaQ 

• MCSE (Microsoft Certified System Engineer) 

• CCNA (Cisco Certified Network Associate) 

• CCDA (Certified Cisco Design Associate) 

• MRMS (Microsoft Retail Management Systems) 

, CISA (Certified Information Systems Auditor) 

• CNE (Certified Novell EngifleSr) 

• MS CSM (Microsoft Customer Service Manager) 

• MS CAE (Microsoft Certified Account Executive) 

• CCEA (Citrix Certified Enterprise Administrator) • MCDBA (Microsoft Certified Database Admin.) 

leading edge alliance 

Sikich is proud to be part of the Leading Edge Alliance 
The Leading Edge A lliance (LEA) is the second largest international association of 

independent accounting firms.* The LEA is an international professional association of 

independently-owned accounting and consulting firms. Members are top quality firms 

who share an entrepreneurial spirit and a drive to be the premier provider of professional 

services in their chosen markets. The Alliance provides Sikich with an unbeatable 

combination: the comprehensive size and scope of a large multinational company while 

offering their clients the continuity, consistency, and quality service of a local firm. 
"International Accounting Bulletin, 2011 

~ PrimeGiobal ... 
Slkich is proud to be part of PrimeGiobal 
PrimeGiobal is the third largest association of independent accounting firms in the world, 

providing a wide range of tools and resources to help member firms furnish superior 

accounting, auditing, and management services to c lients around the globe. 

Securities are offered through Sikich Corporate Rnance LLC, a registered broker dealer with the Securities 
and Exchange Commissions and a member of FINRAISIPC. Advisory services offered through Sikich 
Rnancial, a Registered Investment Advisor. General securities offered through Triad Advisors, Member 
FINRNSJPC. Triad Advisors and Sikich Financial are not affiliated. 

LOCATIONS: 

C<irpot ate Offic~ . .. 
1415 W Dieh I Rei, Su1te 400 
Napervrlle, IL60563 
(630) 566-8400 . ' . ' 

Chtcago- Monroe Street . · 
(3U) 541·9300 . 

l:hicago- Wacker Dnve 
{312) 64S.6666 ' 

Decatur, II. 
(217) 4~3-bO(JO 

Oenver,CO ·. 
(720) 200{)142 

Houston, TX. 
(812} 831-3549 

lndtanapolis~ IN 
(317) g42-4466 

Milwaukee, WI 
(262} 754-9400 

Rockford, IL 
(gl5) 282·656~ 

Springfield, IL 
(217) 793-3363 

StLOUIS, MO 
(314) 275-i277 

CONNECT WITH US 

'You ·, fin 
.· mDI.W 

www stktch com/blog 

!$i Sikich~ 
877.279.1900 I mfo@stktch.com 

www.siklch.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
City of Darien, Illinois 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Darien, illinois (the City) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2014, and the related 
notes to the fmancial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic fmancial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to. obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective fmancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Darien, Illinois, as of 
April 30, 2014, and the respective changes in fmancial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and the required supplementary information as listed in the table of 
contents be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the . basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining 
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and supplemental data are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic fmancial 
statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in 
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

-2-
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We also have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the City's basic financial statements for the year ended April30, 2013, 
which are not presented with the accompanying financial statements. In our report dated 
September 24, 2013, we expressed unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information. That audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on 
the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statement as a 
whole. The 2013 comparative data included on certain individual fund schedules are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2013 fmancials statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic fmancial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the 2013 comparative information included on certain individual fund 
schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic fmancial statements 
from which they have been derived. 

The introductory and supplemental data have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Naperville, lllinois 
-----'· 2014 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

April30,2014 

Prim~ Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,974,450 $ 1,325,766 $ 9,300,216 
Receivables (net, where applicable, 
of allowances for uncollectibles) 

Property taxes 1,883,323 1,883,323 
Accounts 1,220,463 1,220,463 
Intergovernmental 1,840,933 1,840,933 
Other 310,828 13,298 324,126 

Net pension asset 186,567 186,567 
Inventories 44,045 44,045 
Prepaid items 86,047 86,047 
Capital assets not being depreciated 3,690,198 100,000 3,790,198 
Capital assets being depreciated 8,567,165 6,299,275 14,866,440 

Total assets 24,583,556 8,958,802 33,542,358 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized loss on refunding 243 802 243 802 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 242583,556 9,2022604 332786,160 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 247,300 476,453 723,753 
Accrued payroll 309,126 26,582 335,708 
Accrued interest payable 50,972 37,134 88,106 
Deposits payable 131,659 131,659 
Other payables 11,005 11,005 
Unearned revenue 137,188 137,188 
Darien Helping Darien Fund 1,182 1,182 
DTC maintenance escrow 10,000 10,000 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Due within one year 817,369 208,141 1,025,510 
Due in more than one year 3,401,170 2,935,737 6,336,907 

Total liabilities 5,116,971 3,684,047 8,801,018 

DEFERREDINFLOWSOFRESOURCES 
Deferred property taxes 1,883,323 1,883,323 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 7,000,294 3,684,047 10,684,341 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 8,681,824 3,287,052 11,968,876 
Restricted for 

Special service area 9,126 9,126 
Public safety 91,191 91,191 
Highways and streets 152,455 152,455 
Debt service 13,413 13,413 

Unrestricted 826352253 22231 2505 1028662758 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 17,583,262 $ 5,518,557 $ 23,101,819 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
-4 -
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges Grants and Grants and 
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Ex2enses for Services Contributions Contributions 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

Governmental Activities 
General government $ 1,389,466 $ 1,163,647 $ $ 
Highways and streets 5,996,960 691,268 647,807 342,214 
Public safety 6,978,866 241,727 95,360 
Interest and fiscal charges on 
long-term debt 148 047 

Total governmental activities 14,513,339 220962642 7432167 3422214 

Business-Type Activities 
Water operations 6 532,005 6,027,798 

Total business-type activities 6,532,005 6,027,798 

TOTALP~ARYGOVERNMENT $ 21 20452344 $ 811241440 $ 743,167 $ 3421214 
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General Revenues 
Taxes 

Property 
Sales 
Local use 
Telecorrununications 
Utility 
Amusement 
Hotel/motel 
Road and bridge 
Video gaming 

Intergovernmental 
Replacement tax 
Income tax 
Other 

Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, MAY 1 

NET POSITION, APRIL 30 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Net (Ex~ense) Revenue and Change in Net Position 
Prima!): Government 

Governmentlll Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

$ (225,819) $ 
(4,315,671) 
(6,641,779) 

{148,047} 

(11,331,316) 

(11,331,316) 

1,837,619 
5,025,602 

384,587 
787,188 

1,154,303 
87,861 
48,835 

208,665 
4,360 

7,043 
2,152,195 

145,902 
64,582 

101,300 

12,010,042 

678,726 

16,904,536 

$ 17,583,262 $ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 6 -

!504,207} 

!504,207} 

(504,207) 

11,367 
71,798 

83,165 

(421,042) 

5,939,599 

5,518,557 

$ 

$ 

Total 

(225,819) 
(4,315,671) 
( 6,641 '779) 

p481047} 

(11,331,316) 

!504,207} 

{504,207} 

(11,835,523) 

1,837,619 
5,025,602 

384,587 
787,188 

1,154,303 
87,861 
48,835 

208,665 
4,360 

7,043 
2,152,195 

145,902 
75,949 

173,098 

12,093,207 

257,684 

22,844,135 

23,101,819 
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ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net, where applicable, 
of allowances for uncollectibles) 
Property taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Other 

Prepaid items 
Inventory 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABll..ITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Deposits payable 
Other payables 
Unearned revenue 
Darien Helping Darien Fund 
DTC maintenance escrow 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable property taxes 
Other unavailable revenue 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 

Prepaid items 
Inventory 

Restricted 
Special service area 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Debt service 

Unrestricted 
Assigned 

Capital improvements 
Unassigned 

General Fund 

Total fimd balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
AND FUND BALANCES 

CITY OF DARIEN, ll..LINOIS 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Apri130,2014 

Capital 
General Iml!rovementll 

$ 2,328,734 $ 5,419,596 

1,184,067 202,256 
1,800,217 

310,828 
86,047 
44,045 

$ 5,753,938 $ 5,621,852 

$ 183,985 $ 53,479 
309,126 
131,659 

II,005 
137,188 

1,182 
10,000 

646,957 190,667 

1,184,067 202,256 
50969 

1,235,036 202,256 

1,881,993 392,923 

86,047 
44,045 

9,185 

5,228,929 

3,732,668 

3,871,945 5,228,929 

$ 5,753,938 $ 5,621,852 

Debt 
Service 

$ 13,413 

497,000 

$ 510,413 

$ 

497,000 

497,000 

497,000 

13,413 

13,413 

$ 510,413 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 7-
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NonmaJor Total 

$ 212,707 $ 7,974,450 

1,883,323 
40,716 1,840,933 

310,828 
86,047 
44,045 

$ 253,423 $ 12,139,626 

$ 9,836 $ 247,300 
309,126 
131 ,659 
II,005 

137,188 
1,182 

10 000 

9 836 847 460 

1,883,323 
50,969 

1,934,292 

9,836 2,781,752 

86,047 
44,045 

9,126 9,126 
82,006 91,191 

152,455 152,455 
13,413 

5,228,929 

3,732 668 

243,587 9,357,874 

$ 253,423 $ 12,1391626 
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALA."N"CES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

FUNDBALANCESOFGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 

Net pension asset is shown as an asset on the statement of net position 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 

Bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension obligation 

Other long-term receivables are not available to pay for 
current period expenditures and, therefore, are 
deferred in the governmental funds 

Unamortized premiums on long-term debt are other financing sources in 
governmental funds in the year of issuance but are capitalized and 
amortized on the statement of net position 

Accrued interest payable is not recorded in governmental 
funds but is recorded on the statement of net position 

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
-8 -

$ 9,357,874 

12,257,363 

186,567 

(3,400,000) 
(162,466) 
(599,355) 

(43,644) 

50,969 

(13,074) 

(50,972) 

$ 17,583,262 



REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and pennits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Highways and streets 
Public safety 

Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2014 

Capital Debt 
General ImJ!rovements Service 

$ 3,423,728 $ 204,160 $ 502,925 
1,118,571 
7,718,957 342,214 

894,182 85,093 
10,255 49,424 1,403 
49 127 

13,214,820 680,891 504!328 

1,369,467 
1,869,491 65,369 
6,892,574 

2,742,365 

160,500 135,000 410,000 
4,838 67,747 88775 

10,296,870 3,010,481 498,775 

2,917,950 {2,329,590} 5,553 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 5,859 3,747,422 
Transfers (out) (3,747,422) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 24 550 

Total other financing sources (uses) p,7171013} 3,7471422 

NEf CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (799,063) 1,417,832 5,553 

FUND BALANCES, MAY 1 4,671,008 3,811,097 7,860 

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30 $ 3,871,945 $ 5,228,929 $ 13,413 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Nonmajor Total 

$ 5,061 $ 4,135,874 
1,118,571 

732,496 8,793,667 
979,275 

3,500 64,582 
49127 

741,057 15,141,096 

1,369,467 
796,009 2,730,869 

7,911 6,900,485 
2,742,365 

705,500 
161,360 

803,920 14,610,046 

{62,863} 531,050 

3,753,281 
(5,859) (3, 753,281) 

24550 

(5!859} 24!550 

(68,722) 555,600 

312,309 8,802,274 

$ 243,587 $ 9,357,874 



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES­
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however, they are 
capitalized and depreciated in the statement of activities 

Some expenses in the statement of activities (e.g., depreciation) do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds 

Revenues in the statement of activities that are not available in governmental 
funds are not reported as revenue in governmental funds until received 

The repayment of the principal portion long~ term debt is reported as 
an expenditure when due in governmental funds but as a reduction of 
principal outstanding in the statement of activities 

The change in accrued interest payable on long~term debt is reported 
as an expense on the statement of activities 

Certain costs associated with the issuances ofbonds are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds on the statement of activities: 
Premium on issuance 

The change in compensated absences payable is shown as an expense 
on the statement of activities 

The change in the net pension obligation is shown as an expense 
on the statement of activities 

The change in the net pension asset is shown as a reduction of expense 
on the statement of activities 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 555,600 

112,000 

(841,638) 

50,969 

705,500 

10,045 

3,268 

81,544 

1,438 

$ 678,726 

41. 



CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net, where applicable, 
of allowances for uncollectibles) 
Water- billed 
Water - unbilled 
Other 

Total current assets 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Capital assets 

Assets not being depreciated 
Assets being depreciated 

Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets being depreciated 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized loss on refunding 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

April30, 2014 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable 
Compensated absences payable 

Total current liabilities 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Bonds payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension obligation 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Water 
Operations 

$ 1,325,766 

$ 

12,337 
1,208,126 

13,298 

2,559,527 

100,000 

15,806,540 
{91507z265l 

6,299,275 

61399,275 

8,958,802 

2431802 

9,2021604 

476,453 
26,582 
37,134 

205,000 
3 141 

748 310 

2,907,223 
17,802 
10 712 

2,9351737 

3,684,047 

3,287,052 
2,231,505 

5,518,557 

41 



OPERATING REVENUES 
Water sales 
Inspections/tap on/permits 
Sale of meters 
Other water sales 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

STA1EMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION 
Personnel services 
Materials and supplies 
Contractual services 
Capital related - uncapitalized 

Total operating expenses excluding 
depreciation 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous income 
Interest expense 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSmON, MAY I 

NET POSITION, APRIL 30 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Water 
Operations 

$ 6,007,223 
13,987 
3,241 
3,347 

6,027,798 

790,009 
736,110 

4,337,412 
222,708 

6,086,239 

(58,441) 

335,144 

(393,585) 

11,367 
71,798 

(110,622) 

(27,457) 

(421,042) 

5,939,599 

$ 5,518,557 
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended Apri130, 2014 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments to other funds 

Net cash from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
None 

Net cash from noncapi1al financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Miscellaneous receipts 

Net cash from capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 
Interest received 

Net cash from investing activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVILENTS, MAY I 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVILENTS, APRIL 30 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 
TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension obligation 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS 
IRMA excess surplus revenue 

Net noncash transactions 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

BusineSS• Type 
Activities 

Water 
Operations 

$ 6,566,742 
(4,962,459) 

(785,964) 
(250,000) 

568,319 

(200,000) 
(100,235) 

582500 

(241,735) 

11367 

11.367 

337,951 

987,815 

s 1!325!766 

s (393,585) 

335,144 

538,944 
83,771 

331 
1,138 
2,576 

s 568,319 

s 13~98 

$ 13,298 

44 



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

April30t 2014 

Pension 
Trust Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 320,472 
Investments 

U.S. Treasury obligations 564,930 
Annuities 54,671 
U.S. agency obligations 5,762,938 
Municipal bonds 1t331t707 
Corporate bonds 3,102,798 
Certificates of deposit 189,572 
Equity mutual funds 11,760,465 

Receivables 
Accrued interest 91,513 

Prepaid expenses 517 

Total assets 23,179,583 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 8,676 
Benefits payable 134,998 
Due to others 
Impact fees payable 
Deposits payable 

Tota1liabilities 143,674 

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR 
PENSION BENEFITS $ 23,035,909 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Agency 

$ 18,524 

$ 18,524 

$ 

11t043 
7,455 

26 

$ 18,524 



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
POLICE PENSION FUND 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions 

Employer 
Employee 

Total contributions 

Investment income 
Net appreciation in 

fair value of investments 
Interest 

Total investment income 

Less investment expense 

Net investment income 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Pension benefits 
Contractual services 
Administrative expenses 

Total deductions 

NET INCREASE 

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST 
FOR PENSION BENEFITS 

May1 

April30 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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$ 1,125A32 
289,751 

1A15,183 

701,478 
803,593 

1,505,071 

(74,506) 

1,430,565 

2,845,748 

1,507,375 
19,107 
16,970 

1,543,452 

1,302,296 

21,733,613 

$ 23,035,909 



Preliminary and Tentative 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE:MENTS 

April 30, 2014 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The fmancial statements of the City of Darien, Illinois (the City) have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and fmancial 
reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described 
below. 

a. Financial Reporting Entity 

The City is a municipal corporation governed by a seven-member council consisting 
of seven aldermen and the mayor. As required by GAAP, these financial statements 
present the City and its component units, entities for which the government is 
considered to be fmancially accountable. Blended component units, although legally 
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City's operations and so data from 
these units are combined with data of the primary government. 

The City's financial statements include a pension trust fund. 

Police Pension Employees Retirement System 

The City's police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees Retirement 
System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is 
governed by a five-member pension board. Two members appointed by the City's 
Mayor, one elected pension beneficiary, and two elected police employees constitute 
the pension board. The City and PPERS participants are obligated to fund all PPERS 
costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of illinois is authorized to establish 
benefit levels and the City is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in 
the determination of contribution levels. Although it possesses many of the 
characteristics of a legally separate government, PPERS is reported as if it were part 
of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the 
pensions of the City's police employees, and because of the fiduciary nature of such 
activities. PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund. 

- 16 -
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b. Fund Accounting 

The City uses funds to report on its fm.ancial position and the changes in its financial 
position. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid 
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain city functions or 
activities. 

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary. 

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the City's general 
activities. Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified 
purposes other than debt service or capital projects. Capital projects funds are used to 
account for and report fmancial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned 
to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital 
facilities and other capital assets. Debt service funds are used to account for and 
report fm.ancial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure 
for principal and interest. The general fund is used to account for all activities of the 
general government not accounted for in some other fund. 

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the 
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound 
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided 
either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies 
primarily within the City (internal service funds). 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, 
including other governments. The City utilizes pension trust funds and agency funds 
which are generally used to account for assets that the City holds in fiduciary 
capacity or on behalf of others as their agent. 

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net position and 
the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of 
the City. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these 
financial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

- 17 -



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINk~CIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function, segment, or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program 
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

Separate fmancial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary 
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government­
wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major 
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in 
another fund. 

The Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for the proceeds of the 
Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 A restricted to expenditures for 
the related capital projects. 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the repayment of the General 
Obligation Bonds. Financing is provided by a restricted property tax levy. 

The City reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Water Operations Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer 
services to the residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such 
services are accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to, 
administration, operations, fmancing and related debt service, and billing and 
collections. 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

c. Government· Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The City reports the following fiduciary funds: 

The Police Pension Fund accounts for the activities of the accwnulation of 
resources to pay pension costs. Resources are contributed by members at rates 
fixed by state statutes and by the City which uses the annual property tax levy 
to fund the employer contribution. 

Agency Funds account for assets held on behalf of third parties and that do not 
involve the measurement of operating results. 

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation 

The government·wide fmancial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
and pension trust fund financial statements. Revenues and additions are recorded 
when earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is incurred. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e., 
intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as 
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Operating 
revenues and expenses are directly attributable to the operation of the proprietary 
funds. Nonoperating revenue/expenses are incidental to the operations of these 
funds. 

Governmental fund fmancial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible 
to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). "Measurable" 
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period, 
except for sales taxes, income taxes, and telecommunications taxes which use a 
90-day period. The City recognizes property taxes when they become both 
measurable and available in the year intended to fmance. Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on generallong·term 
debt are recorded as expenditures when due. 

Sales taxes owed to the state at year end; franchise taxes, licenses, charges for 
services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. 
Income and motor fuel taxes and fines collected and held by the state or county at 
year end on behalf of the City are also recognized as revenue. Fines and permits 
revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable 
until received in cash. 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation 
(Continued) 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues (i.e., 
federal and state grants), the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous 
individual programs are used as guidelines. Monies that are virtually unrestricted as 
to purpose of expenditure, which are usually revocable only for failure to comply 
with prescribed compliance requirements, are reflected as revenues at the time of 
receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 

The City reports unearned/unavailable revenue on its financial statements. 
Unearned/unavailable revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the 
measurable and available or earned criteria for recognition in the current period. 
Unearned/unavailable revenues also arise when resources are received by the 
government before it has legal claim to them as when grant monies are received prior 
to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both 
revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to the 
resources, the liability for unearned/unavailable revenue is removed from the 
financial statements and revenue is recognized. 

e. Cash and Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City's proprietary funds consider all 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Investments 

City investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased are stated at 
cost or amortized cost. City investments with a maturity greater than one year when 
purchased and all pension fund investments are stated at fair value in accordance 
with GASB Statement No. 31. 

Illinois Funds, a money market mutual fund created by the illinois State Legislature 
and controlled by the illinois State Treasurer is reported at a $1 per share value, 
which equals the City's fair value in the pool. 

f. Interfund Receivables/Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other 
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" 
(i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." 

-20-
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

g. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out 
(FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund inventories, if any, are recorded as 
expenditures when purchased. 

h. Prepaid Items/Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of 
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses, if any. 

i. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, storm sewers), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. 
Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $50,000 for machinery, equipment, and vehicles, $100,000 for building 
improvements, $100,000 for buildings, $200,000 for infrastructure and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year, and any amount for land. Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe asset 
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as 
applicable. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of 
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed. Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets 

Buildings 
Building improvements 
Land improvements 
Machinery, vehicles, and equipment 
Infrastructure - streets 
Waterworks and sewage system 
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Years 

25-50 
8-25 

15-35 
5-20 
25-50 

25 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

j . Compensated Absences 

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation 
and sick pay benefits. Vacations must be taken in the year following the one in 
which it was earned. Unused vacation time is not allowed to be carried over to the 
subsequent year without approval. Sick leave may be accumulated for future use. 
City employees may accrue up to 120 or 150 hours depending on the employment 
classification. The City's policy allows for a bonus to be paid for those employees 
who have not used sick days in the given year. Accumulated amounts are paid out at 
retirement at a rate of 50% of the employee's current hourly salary rate. 

Vested or accumulated vacation leave are reported as an expenditure and a fund 
liability of the governmental fund that will pay it once retirement or separation has 
occurred. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave of proprietary funds and 
governmental activities are recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the 
benefits accrue to employees. 

k. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund fmancial statements. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable 
bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are recognized during the current 
period. 

In the fund fmancial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount 
of debt issued is reported as other fmancing sources. Premiums received on debt 
issuances are reported as other fmancing sources while discounts on debt issuances 
are reported as other fmancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the 
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures. 

1. Fund Balances/Net Position 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund 
balance for amounts that are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are reported for 
amounts constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for a specific 
purpose, or externally imposed by outside entities. Committed fund balance is 
constrained by formal actions of the City Council, which is considered the City's 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

1. Fund Balances/Net Position (Continued) 

highest level of decision making authority. Formal actions include ordinances 
approved by the Board. Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained by 
the City's intent to use them for a specific purpose. The authority to assign fund 
balance has been delegated to the City Administrator. Any residual fund balance of 
the General Fund is reported as unassigned. 

The City has not adopted a flow of funds policy and, therefore, applies the flow of 
funds from GASB Statement No. 54, which prescribes that the funds with the highest 
level of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available 
for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of 
unrestricted funds are available for spending the City considers committed funds to 
be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds. For net position, 
restricted funds are spent first then unrestricted funds. 

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net position are legally 
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Net investment in capital assets 
represents the City's investment in the book value of capital assets, less any 
outstanding debt that was issued to construct or acquire the capital asset. 

None of the restricted net position or restricted fund balance results from enabling 
legislation adopted by the City. 

m. Interfund Transactions 

Interfund services are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. 
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses 
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as 
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of 
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services and reimbursements, are 
reported as transfers. 

n. Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the fmancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

o. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of fmancial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. The City only has one item that qualifies for 
reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the 
government-wide statement of net position. An unamortized loss on refunding results 
from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. 
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or 
refunding debt. In addition to liabilities, the statement of fmancial position will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 

This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period( s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has only one 
type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, 
unavailable/deferred revenue for property taxes, is reported in the governmental 
funds balance sheet and the statement of net position. These amounts are deferred 
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available or are earned. 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except 
the pension trust funds. Each fund's portion of this pool is displayed on the financial 
statements as "cash and investments." In addition, cash and investments are separately held 
by several of the City's funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds are 
held separately from those of other funds. 

a. City Deposits and Investments 

The City's investment policy authorizes the City to invest in all investments allowed 
by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). These include deposits/investments in insured 
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury 
and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with 
portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or 
agreements to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term 
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two 
standard rating services, Illinois Funds (created by the lllinois State Legislature 
under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a $1 per share value which is 
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

a. City Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

equal to the participants fair value), and the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund 
(IMET), a not-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant to the Illinois Municipal 
Code and managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members. 
IMET is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in 
IMET are valued at IMET' s share price, the price for which the investment could be 
sold. The City' s investment policy does limit its deposits to financial institutions that 
are members of the FDIC system and are capable of posting collateral for amounts in 
excess of FDIC insurance. 

It is the policy of the City to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the 
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash 
flow demands of the City and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the 
investment of public funds, using the "prudent person'' standard for managing the 
overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety 
of principal, liquidity, and yield. 

Deposits with Financial Institutions 

Custodial credit risk for deposits with tinancial institutions is the risk that in the 
event of bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's 
investment policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess of 
federal depository insurance. The investment policy does not address how collateral 
is held. Collateral is held by a third party custodian in the City's name. At April 30, 
2014, the City had uninsured and uncollateralized deposits of $136,828 out of a total 
bank balance of$9,238,728. 

Investments 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the City limits its 
exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for short 
and long-term cash flow needs while providing a reasonable rate of return based on 
the current market. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City does not directly 
invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase. 

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the City's investments 
tha~ are subject to interest rate risk as of April30, 2014: 

Investment Type 

IM:ET 1-3 year fund 

TOTAL 

$ 

$ 

Investment Maturities in Years 
Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 Greater than 10 

16 297 $ - $ 16,297 $ - $ 

16 297 $ - $ 16,297 $ - $ 

-25 -

56 



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

a. City Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Investments (Continued) 

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon 
maturity. The City limits its exposure to credit risk by limiting investments to the 
types of securities listed above; pre-qualifying the financial institutions, 
broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers with which the City will do business in 
accordance with the City's investment policy; diversifying the investment portfolio 
so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or from any one 
individual issuer will be minimized. 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to the investment, the City will not be able to recover the value of its 
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the 
City's investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to 
custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with 
the underlying investments held by an independent third party custodian and 
evidenced by safekeeping receipts. 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the City has a high percentage of its 
investments invested in one type of investment. The City's investment policy 
requires diversification of investments to avoid unreasonable risk. The investments 
shall be diversified by: 

• Limiting investments to avoid over concentration in securities from a specific 
issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities); 

• Limiting investment in securities that have higher credit risks; 
• Investing in securities with varying maturities; and 
• Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds 

such as local government investment pools (LGIPs), money market funds, or 
overnight repurchase agreements to ensure that appropriate liquidity is 
maintained in order to meet ongoing obligations. 

b. Police Pension Fund Deposits and Investments 

The Police Pension Fund's investment policy authorizes the Police Pension Fund to 
invest in all investments allowed by ILCS. These include deposits/investments in 
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, interest-bearing obligations 
of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, interest-bearing bonds of the State oflllinois 
or any county, township, or municipal corporation of the State of lllinois, money 
market mutual funds whose investments consist of obligations of the U.S. Treasury 
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

b. Police Pension Fund Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

or U.S. agencies, separate accounts managed by life insurance companies, mutual 
funds, corporate bonds, common and preferred stock, lllinois Funds (created by the 
lllinois State Legislature under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a $1 
per share value which is equal to the participants fair value), and IMET, a not-for­
profit investment trust formed pursuant to the lllinois Municipal Code and managed 
by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members. IMET is not 
registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in IMET are valued 
at IMET's share price, the price for which the investment could be sold. 

It is the policy of the Police Pension Fund to invest its funds in a manner which will 
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the 
cash flow demands of the Police Pension Fund and conforming to all state and local 
statutes governing the investment of public funds, using the "prudent person" 
standard for managing the overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, 
in order of priority, safety of principal, risk aversion, rate of return, and liquidity. 

Deposits with Financial Institutions 

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the 
event of bank failure, the Police Pension Fund's deposits may not be returned to it. 
The Police Pension Fund's investment policy does not require pledging of collateral 
for all bank balances in excess of federal depository insurance, since flow-through 
FDIC insurance is available for the police pension funds deposits with financial 
institutions. 

Investments 

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Police Pension 
Fund's investments that are subject to interest rate risk as of April 30, 2014: 

Investment Maturities in Years 
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 Greater than 10 

U.S. Treaswy obligations $ 564,930 $ - $ 403,258 $ 161,672 $ 
U.S. agency obligations 5,762,938 276,199 2,754,993 2,372,880 358,866 
Negotiable certificates of 

deposit 189,572 189,572 
Corporate bonds 3,102,798 568,744 1,764,440 769,614 
Municipal bonds 1,331,707 107,035 717,219 450,028 57,425 

TOTAL $ 10,951,945 $ 1,141,550 $ 5,639,910 $ 3,754,194 $ 416,291 
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

b. Police Pension Fund Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Investments (Continued) 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the Police Pension 
Fund limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide 
liquidity for all reasonably anticipated operating requirements while providing a 
reasonable rate of return based on the current market. 

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon 
maturity. The Police Pension Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily 
investing U.S. Treasury or U.S. agency obligations. The U.S. Treasury and U.S. 
agency obligations are rated AA+. Municipal bonds and corporate bonds are rated 
BBBtoAAA. 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to the investment, the Police Pension Fund will not be able to recover 
the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its 
exposure, the Police Pension Fund's investment policy requires all security 
transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery 
versus payment (DVP) basis with the underlying investments held by a third party 
custodian and evidenced by safekeeping receipts. The money market mutual funds 
are not subject to custodial credit risk. 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Police Pension Fund has a high 
percentage of its investments invested in one type of investment. 

3. RECEIVABLES 

a. Property Taxes 

Property taxes for 2013 attached as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2013, on 
property values assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the 
subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared 
by the County and issued on or about May 1, 2014, and are payable in two 
installments, on or about June 1, 2014 and September 1, 2014. The County collects 
such taxes and remits them periodically. The allowance for uncollectible taxes has 
been stated at 1% of the tax levy, to reflect actual collection experience. As the 2013 
tax levy is intended to fund expenditures for the 2014-2015 fiscal year, these taxes 
are unavailable as of April30, 2014. 
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3. RECEIVABLES (Continued) 

a. Property Taxes (Continued) 

The 2014 tax levy, which attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1, 
2014, has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30, 2014 as the tax has not 
yet been levied by the City and will not be levied until December 2014 and, 
therefore, the levy is not measurable at April30, 2014. 

b. Due from Other Governments and Other Receivables 

Nonmajor 
General Governmental Total 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
Intergovernmental 
Sales tax $ 1,170,813 $ $ 1,170,813 
Local use tax 79,892 79,892 
Income tax 338,092 338,092 
Motor fuel tax 40,716 40,716 
Telecommunications tax 203,895 203,895 
Drug seizures 7,525 7,525 

Total intergovernmental 1,800,217 40,716 1,840,933 

Other receivables 
Franchise fees 94,006 94,006 
Hotel/motel tax 3,533 3,533 
Amusement tax 6,520 6,520 
Utility tax 118,382 118,382 
Paypal 39 39 
IRMA 50,969 50,969 
Accounts 37,379 37,379 

Total other receivables 310,828 310,828 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTNITIES $ 2,111,045 $ 40,716 $ 2,151,761 
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended Apri130, 2014 was as follows: 

Balances Balances 
Max I Increases Decreases AEril30 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land $ 3,690,198 $ - $ - $ 3,690,198 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,690 198 3,690,198 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 6,133,816 6,133,816 
Machlnery, vehicles, and equipment 2,848,752 112,000 2,960,752 
Infrastructure 12,768,226 12,768,226 

Total capital assets being depreciated 21,750,794 112,000 21,862,794 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Buildings and improvements 2,581,900 125,728 2,707,628 
Machinery, vehicles, and equipment 1,658,105 250,228 1,908,333 
Infrastructure 822132986 465,682 826792668 

Total accumulated depreciation 12,453,991 841,638 13,295,629 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 9,296,803 {729,638) 8,567,165 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 12!987,001 $ !729,638l $ - $ 12!257,363 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the govenunental activities as 
follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE ­
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
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$ 51,034 
161,145 
629,459 

$ 841,638 
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4. 

5. 

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Balances Balances 
Max 1 Increases Decreases A,Eril30 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTNITIES 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land $ 100,000 $ - $ - $ 100,000 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 100,000 100,000 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 6,989,234 6,989,234 
Machinery and equipment 832,615 832,615 
Infrastructure 7 984691 7 984 691 

Total capital assets being depreciated 15 806 540 15,806,540 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Buildings and improvements 3,014,261 198,830 3,213,091 
Machinery and equipment 829,116 500 829,616 
Infrastructure 5,328,744 135,814 5,464,558 

Total accumulated depreciation 9,172,121 335,144 9,507,265 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,634,419 {335,144} 6,299,275 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 6,734,419 $ (335,144) $ - $ 6,399,275 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; employee health; natural disasters; illnesses of 
employees; and injuries to the City's employees. 

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) 

The City participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). IRMA 
is an organization of municipalities and special districts in northeastern lllinois that have 
formed an association under the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperations Statute to pool 
their risk management needs. IRMA administers a mix of self-insurance and commercial 
insurance coverages; property/casualty and workers' compensation claim administration! 
litigation management services; unemployment claim administration; extension risk 
management/loss control consulting and training programs; and a risk information system 
and financial reporting service for its members. 

The City's payments to IRMA are displayed on the fmancial statements as 
expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. Each member assumes the first $2,500 of each 
occurrence, and IRMA has a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance at various 
amounts above that level. 
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S. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) (Continued) 

Each member appoints one delegate, along with an alternate delegate, to represent the 
member on the Board of Directors. The City does not exercise any control over the 
activities ofiRMA beyond its representation on the Board of Directors. 

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member' s eligible 
revenue as defined in the by-laws of IRMA and experience modification factors based on 
past member loss experience. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of 
IRMA attributable to a membership year during which they were a member. Supplemental 
contributions may be required to fund these deficits. The City is aware of no additional 
contributions due to IRMA as of April30, 2014. 

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC) 

The City participates in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC). 
IPBC is a public entity risk pool established by certain units of local government in lllinois 
to administer some or all of the personnel benefit programs (primarily medical, dental, and 
life insurance coverage) offered by these members to their officers and employees and to 
the officers and employees of certain governmental, quasi governmental, and nonprofit 
public service entities. 

The IPBC receives, processes, and pays such claims as may come within the benefit 
program of each member. Management consists of a Board of Directors comprised of one 
appointed representative from each member. In addition, there are two officers; a Benefit 
Administrator and a Treasurer. The City does not exercise any control over the activities of 
the IPBC beyond its representation on the Board of Directors. 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT 

a. General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued 
for general government activities. In addition, general obligation bonds have been 
issued to refund general obligation bonds. General obligation bonds are direct 
obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. 

A summary of changes in long-term debt reported in the governmental activities of 
the City for the year ended April30, 2014 is as follows: 
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

a. General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

Governmental Activities 

Issue 

$2,600,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2007B are due in 
annual installments (beginning 
December 15, 2012) ranging from 
$390,000 to $475,000 with interest 
at 4.000%. The last payment is due 

Fund 
Debt 

Retired by 
Balances 

May 1 Issuances 

December 15,2017. Debt Service $ 2,210,000 $ 

$2,370,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2008 are due in 
annual installments (beginning 
January 1, 2009) ranging from 
$115,000 to $190,000 with interest 
from 3.50% to 4.00%. The last 
payment due is January I, 2024. 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL 
BONDED DEBT 

Capital 
Improvement 

Business-Type Activities 

Issue 

$3,900,000 General Obligation 
Water Bonds, Series 2006 are due 
in annual installments (beginning 
December 15, 2007) ranging from 
$60,000 to $300,000 with interest 
from 4.10% to 4.30%. The last 
payment is due on December 15, 
2025. 

$2,810,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 are 
due in annual installments 
(beginning December 15, 2012) 
ranging from $20,000 to $290,000 
with interest from 2.00% to 
3.50%. The last payment is due on 
December 15, 2025. 

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 
BONDED DEBT 

Fund 
Debt 

Retired by 

Water 

Water 

1,735,000 

$ 3,945,000 $ 

Balances 
Mayl Issuances 

$ 365,000 $ 

2,790,000 

$ 3,155,000 $ 
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Balances 
April30 

Due Within 
One Year 

- $ 410,000 $ 1,800,000 $ 425,000 

135,000 1,600,000 140,000 

$ 545,000 $ 3,400,000 $ 565,000 

Retirements 
Balances 
April30 

Due Within 
One Year 

- $ 180,000 $ 185,000 $ 185,000 

20,000 2,770,000 20,000 

$ 200,000 $ 2,955,000 $ 205,000 
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

b. Installment Contracts 

On September 19, 2011, the City entered into an installment contract with Hinsdale 
Bank & Trust Co. to fmance the purchase of public safety vehicles and equipment in 
the amount of$483,466 with an interest rate of 1.50%. 

c. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
Fiscal General Obligation Bonds General Obligation Bonds 
Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 565,000 $ 134,256 $ 699,256 $ 205,000 $ 91,756 $ 296,756 
2016 585,000 112,006 697,006 215,000 83,725 298,725 
2017 615,000 88,969 703,969 220,000 79,425 299,425 
2018 635,000 64,563 699,563 225,000 75,025 300,025 
2019 165,000 39,363 204,363 230,000 68,275 298,275 
2020 170,000 32,969 202,969 240,000 61,375 301,375 
2021 175,000 26,381 201,381 245,000 54,175 299,175 
2022 185,000 19,600 204,600 260,000 46,825 306,825 
2023 190,000 12,200 202,200 265,000 39,025 304,025 
2024 115,000 4,600 119,600 275,000 29,750 304,750 
2025 285,000 20,125 305,125 
2026 290,000 10,150 300,150 

TOTAL $ 3,400,000 $ 534,907 $ 3,934,907 $ 2,955,000 $ 659,631 $ 3,614,631 

Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Installment Contract- 2011 
Year Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 162,466 $ 2,437 $ 164,903 

TOTAL $ 162,466 $ 2,437 $ 164,903 
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

d. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities during fiscal year 
2014: 

Balances Balances Due Within 
Ma;)::1 Additions Reductions AEri130 One Year 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
General obligation bonds $ 3,945,000 $ . $ 545,000 $ 3,400,000 $ 565,000 
Installment contract- 2011 322,966 160,500 162,466 162,466 
Unamortized bond premium 16,342 3,268 13,074 
Compensated absences payable* 680,899 20,591 102,135 599,355 89,903 
Net pension obligation* 45,082 1,438 43,644 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES $ 5,010,289 $ 20,591 $ 812!341 $ 4,218,539 $ 817,369 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
General obligation bonds $ 3,155,000 $ - $ 200,000 $ 2,955,000 $ 205,000 
Unamortized bond discount (7,079) (3,539) (3,540) 
Unamortized bond premium 174,160 13,397 160,763 
Compensated absences payable 19,805 4,109 2,971 20,943 3,141 
Net pension obligation 8,136 2,576 10,712 

TOTAL BUSINESS· TYPE 
ACTIVITIES $ 3,350,022 $ 6,685 $ 212,829 $ 3,143,878 $ 208,141 

*The General Fund has typically been used to liquidate the compensated absences 
liability and the net pension obligation. 

e. Line of Credit 

On February 18, 2010, the City entered into a line of credit to cover any shortfalls in 
cash. The maximum amount that can be drawn down is $1,250,000. Amounts drawn 
under the line of credit at April 30, 2014 totaled $0. The line of credit was not used 
in fiscal year 2014. 

f. Advance Refunding 

On July 12, 2012, the City issued $2,810,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2012 to refund a portion of the General Obligation Water Bonds, Series 2006. 
$2,954,119 of the proceeds, including reoffering premium, have been deposited onto 
an irrevocable trust to advance refund, through an in-substance defeasance, 
$2,690,000 of the General Obligation Water Bonds, Series 2006. Through the 
refunding, the City reduced its overall debt service by $127,079 and had an 
economic gain of$108,926. As of April 30, 2014, $2,690,000 ofthe defeased bonds 
were outstanding to be paid from escrow on December 15, 2014. 
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7. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES 

Transfers between funds at April30, 2014 consist ofthe following: 

Fund 

General 
Capital Improvements 
Nonmajor Governmental 

TOTAL 

The purpose of the transfer is as follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

$ 5,859 $ 3,747,422 
3,747,422 

5,859 

$ 3,753,281 $ 3,753,281 

• $3,747,422 transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Improvements Fund for 
capital projects. This transfer will not be repaid. 

8. COMMITMENTS 

DuPage Water Commission 

The City has committed to purchase water from the DuPage Water Commission (the 
Commission). The City expects to pay the following minimum amounts based on the 
Commission's debt service requirements: 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 
April30, 

2015 
2016 
2017 

Amount 

$ 278,658 
278,658 
278,658 

These amounts have been calculated using the City's current allocation percentage of 
3.90%. In future years, this allocation percentage will be subject to change. 

9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

a. Litigation 

The City is not aware of any pending or threatening litigation. 
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9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 

b. DuPage Water Commission 

The City's water supply agreement with the Commission provides that each 
customer is liable for its proportionate share of any costs arising from defaults in 
payment obligations by other customers. 

c. Economic Incentive Agreement 

The City entered into an agreement in April2012 with two local businesses wherein 
the City will rebate up to a net present value of $4,000,000 of incremental sales tax 
revenue, discounted at 8.15%. The agreement is contingent upon the completion of 
an expansion project by businesses. 

The City entered into an agreement in February 2013 with a local business wherein 
the City will rebate up to $750,000 of sales tax revenue over 11 years, contingent on 
the renewal of a retail lease renewal. 

10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

The City contributes to two defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system 
and the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit 
levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions for both plans are governed by 
ILCS and can only be amended by the lllinois General Assembly. None of the pension 
plans issue separate reports on the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a publicly 
available report that includes financial statements and supplementary information for the 
plan as a whole, but not for individual employers. That report can be obtained from IMRF, 
2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, lllinois 60523. 

a. Plan Descriptions 

illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

All employees (other than those covered by the Police Pension Plan) hired in 
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled 
in IMRF as participating members. IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. 
Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 
employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members 
who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years 
of credited service are entitled to an annUal retirement benefit, payable monthly for 
life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of 
credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. Employees hired on 
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued) 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 

or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, 
pension benefits vest after 10 years of service. Participating members who retire at 
age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years of credited 
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an 
amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited 
service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. 

IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all 
other requirements are established by state statute. Participating members are 
required to contribute 4.5% of their annual salary to IMRF. The City is required to 
contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund IMRF as specified by statute. 
The employer required contribution for the calendar year ended December 31, 2013 
was 14.16% of covered payroll. 

Police Pension Plan 

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan. Although this is a 
single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer 
contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1) and 
may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a 
pension trust fund. At April30, 2014, the Police Pension Plan membership consisted 
of: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not 

yet receiving them 
Current employees 

Vested 
Nonvested 

TOTAL 

21 

., .. 26 
6 

53 

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability 
benefits. Tier 1 employees (those hired as a police officer prior to January 1, 2011) 
attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable service are 
entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary 
attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last 
day, whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such 
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued) 

Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum 
of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least eight years but less than 20 years 
of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The 
monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after 
January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of 
retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3.00% of the 
original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter. 

Tier 2 employees (those hired as a police officer on or after January 1, 2011) 
attaining the age of 55 or older with ten or more years of creditable service are 
entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary 
obtained by dividing the total salary of the police officer during the 96 consecutive 
months of service within the last 120 months of service in which the total salary was 
the highest by the number of months of service in that period. Police officers' salary 
for pension purposes is capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of Yz of the annual change 
in the Consumer Price Index or 3.00% compounded. The annual benefit shall be 
increased by 2.50% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years 
up to 30 years to a maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least ten 
years may retire at or after age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., Yz% for each 
month under 55). The monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased 
annually at age 60 on the January 1st after the police officer retires, or the first 
anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later. Noncompounding 
increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3.00% 
or Yz of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year. 

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the 
Police Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 
years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without 
accumulated interest. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts 
necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary and the 
administrative costs. Effective January 1, 2011, the City has until the year 2040 to 
fund 90% of the past service costs for the Police Pension Plan. For the year ended 
April 30, 2014, the City's contribution was · %of covered payroll. 
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

b. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters 

Basis of Accounting 

The fmancial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Employee and employer contributions are recognized when due pursuant to formal 
commitments as well as statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

Method Used to Value Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value. Investment income is recognized as earned. 
Gains and losses on sales and exchanges of fixed-income securities are recognized 
on the transaction date. 

Administrative Costs 

Administrative costs for the Police Pension Plan are financed primarily through 
investment earnings. 

c. Annual Pension Costs 

Employer contributions have been determined as follows: 

Illinois 
Municipal Police 
Retirement Pension 

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 20 II April 30, 20I4 

Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal 

Asset valuation method 5 Year Smoothed Market 
Market 

Amortization method Level Percentage Level Percentage 
of Payroll ofPaytoll 

Amortization period 3 0 Years, Open 29 Years, C1osed 
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

c. Annual Pension Costs (Continued) 

Significant actuarial assumptions 
a) Rate of return on 

present and future assets 

b) Projected salary increase -
attributable to inflation 

c) Additional projected 
salary increases -
seniority/merit 

d) Postretirement benefit increases 

lllinois 
Municipal 
Retirement 

7.50% 
Compounded 

Annually 

4.00% 
Compounded 

Annually 

.40% to 10.00% 

3.00% 

Police 
Pension 

7.00% 
Compounded 

Annually 

5.50% 
Compounded 

Annually 

N/A 

3.00% 

Employer annual pension cost (APC), actual contributions, and the net pension 
obligation (asset) (NPO) are as follows. The NPO (asset) is the cumulative difference 
between the APC and the contributions actually made. 

For Illinois 
Fiscal Municipal Police 
Year Retirement Pension 

Annual pension cost 2012 $ 297,056 $ 1,173,219 
(APC) 2013 311,928 982,046 

2014 379,172 . 982,046 

Actual contribution 2012 284,897 1,185,029 
2013 310,813 1,092,730 
2014 378,034 1.092,730 

Percentage of APC contributed 2012 95.91% 101.01% 
2013 99.64% 111.27% 
2014 99.70% 111.27% 

NPO (asset) 2012 $ 52,103 $ (75,883) 
2013 53,218 (186,567) 
2014 54,356 (186.567) 
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

c. Annual Pension Costs (Continued) 

The NPO (asset) as of April30, 2014 has been calculated as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contributions 

Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (asset) 
Net pension obligation (asset), beginning of year 

NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET), 
END OF YEAR 

d. Funded Status 

Illinois 
Municipal 
Retirement 

$ 378,034 
3,991 

(2,853) 

379,172 
378,034 

1,138 
53,218 

$ 54,356 

Police 
Pension 

$ 984,942 
(5,312) 
2,416 

982,046 
1,092,730 

(110,684) 
(75,883) 

$ . {186,567l 

The funded status ofthe plans as of April30, 2014 were as follows: 

Actuarial valuation date 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 
Covered payroll (active plan members) 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 

Illinois 
Municipal 
Retirement 

December 31, 2013 
$ 9,141,576 

6,897,834 
2,243,742 

75.46% 

Police 
Pension 

Apnl30, 2013 
$ 34,738,244 

21,733,612 
. 13,004,632 

- 62.56% 
2,913,928 
446.29'1/o 

$ 2,494,952 $ 
89.93% 

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the funded status of the plans are the 
same actuarial assumptions used to determine the employer APC of the plans as 
disclosed in Note lO.c. 
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

d. Funded Status (Continued) 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the 
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan 
and the ARC of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to financial statements, presents multi-year trend information that 
shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the AALs for benefits. 

See schedules of funding progress in the required supplementary information 
immediately following the notes to financial statements for additional information 
related to the funded status of the plan. 

11. LEASE AGREEMENTS 

As of April 30, 2014, the City has rental agreements with three retailers for the rental of 
business space of the strip mall property at 7 515 South Cass. The three retailers will pay 
the City a combined total of$7,900 on a month-to-month basis. 

12. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

The City allows employees, who retire through one of the City's two pension plans 
disclosed in Note 10, the option to continue in the City's health insurance plan as required 
by ILCS, but the retiree pays the full premium for the health insurance. This has not 
created an implicit subsidy as defmed by GASB Statement No. 45 (GASB S-45), 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions, as the City's health insurance plan is considered a community rated plan. 
In addition, the City has no explicit subsidy as defmed in GASB S-45. 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

2014 
Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 3,366,282 $ 3,423,728 
Licenses, permits and fees 836,600 1,118,571 
Intergovernmental 7,351,546 7,718,957 
Charges for services 531,802 894,182 
Investment income 10,000 10,255 
Miscellaneous 115,000 49,127 

Total revenues 12,211,230 13,214,820 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 1,480,388 1,369,467 
Highways and streets 1,871,207 1,869,491 
Public safety 7,198,555 6,892,574 

Debt service 
Principal 160,500 
Interest 4,838 

Total expenditures 10,550,150 10,296,870 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,661,080 2,917,950 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 5,859 
Transfers (out) (3,747,422) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 15,000 24,550 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 15,000 (3,717,0132 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 116761080 (799,063) 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 416712008 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 3,871,945 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
-44-

Variance 
Over 

(Under) 

$ 57,446 
281,971 
367,411 
362,380 

255 
(65,8732 

1,003,590 

(110,921) 
(1,716) 

(305,981) 

160,500 
4,838 

(253,280) 

1,256,870 

5,859 
(3,747,422) 

9,550 

(3,732,013} 

$ (2!47521432 

2013 
Actual 

$ 3,993,543 
1,034,776 
7,448,362 

681,129 
24,008 
45,126 

13,226,944 

1,338,177 
1,620,121 
6,768,914 

160,500 
4,592 

9,892,304 

3,334,640 

{2,800,000) 
27,842 

(2,772,158} 

562,482 

421082526 

$ 4,671,008 



Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
December 31, 

2008 $ 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

(1) 
Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

6,094,965 

5,596,856 

6,345,481 

5,971,006 

5,970,600 

6,897,834 

For the Year Ended Apri130, 2014 

(4) 
(2) Unfunded 

Actuarial (Overfunded) 
Accrued (3) AAL 
Liability Funded (UAAL) 
(AAL) Ratio (OAAL) 

Entry-Age (1) I (2) (2) - (1) 

$ 8,110,781 75.15% $ 2,015,816 

8,049,960 69.53% 2,453,104 

8,800,442 72.10% 2,454,961 

8,414,833 70.96% 2,443,827 

8,699,564 68.63% 2,728,964 

9,141,576 75.46% 2,243,742 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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UAAL 
(OAAL) 

as a 
Percentage 

(5) of Covered 
Covered Payroll 
Payroll (4) I (5) 

$ 3,101,518 64.99% 

3,169,693 77.39% 

2,962,084 82.88% 

2,579,318 94.75% 

2,329,264 117.16% 

2,494,952 89.93% 
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Actuarial (1) 
Valuation Actuarial 

Date Value of 
April30, Assets 

2009 $ 14,488,861 

2010 16,866,119 

2011 18,838,718 

2012 20,048,107 

2013 21,733,612 

2014 21,733,612 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
POliCE PENSION FUND 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

(2) 
Actuarial (4) 
Accrued (3) Unfunded 
Liability Funded AAL 
(AAL) Ratio (UAAL) 

Entry-Age (1) I (2) (2)- (1) 

$ 28,067,625 51.62% $ 13,578,764 

30,626,124 55.07% 13,760,005 

31,056,795 60.66% 12,218,077 

32,785,742 61.15% 12,737,635 

34,738,244 62.56% 13,004,632 

34,738~244 62.56% 13,004,632 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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UAAL 
as a 

Percentage 
(5) of Covered 

Covered Payroll 
Payroll (4) I (5) 

$ 3,059,620 443.81% 

3,282,075 419.25% 

3,089,788 395.43% 

2,957,431 430.70% 

2,913,928 446.29% 

2,913,928 44629% 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

Annual 
Required 

Employer Contribution 
Contributions (ARC) 

$ 306,740 $ 306,740 

303,386 303,386 

335,252 364,883 

284,897 296,202 

310,813 310,813 

378,034 378,034 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Percentage 
Contributed 

100.00% 

100.00% 

91.88% 

96.18% 

100.00% 

100.00% 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
POUCE PENSION FUND 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

Annual 
Required 

Employer Contribution 
Contributions (ARq 

$ 937,066 $ 927,983 

949,373 939,778 

1,113,781 1,103,909 

1,185,029 1,174,292 

1,092,730 984,942 

1;092,730 984,942 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Percentage 
Contributed 

100.98% 

101.02% 

100.89% 

100.91% 

110.94% 

110 94% 
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Apri130, 2014 

1. BUDGETS 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all governmental funds. 
Budget amounts are as originally adopted by the City Council. All annual appropriations 
lapse at fiscal year end. As the City does not budget for its Drug Seizure Fund (it is not 
legally required to do so) budget to actual schedules are not presented for the Drug Seizure 
Fund. In addition, no budget was adopted for the Federal Equitable Sharing Fund. 

Prior to April30, the City Administrator submits to the City Council a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing May 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. Public hearings are conducted to obtain 
taxpayer comments. Formal budgetary integrations is employed as a management control 
device during the year of the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. 

The City is authorized to change budgeted amounts within any fund; however, revision 
must be approved by two-thirds of the members of the City Council. No revisions can be 
made increasing the budget unless funding is available for the purpose of the revision. The 
legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally 
exceed appropriations) is the fund level. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City 
Administrator is authorized to transfer budget amounts between departments within any 
fund; however, the City Council must approve revisions that alter the total expenditures of 
any fund. 

2. EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET 

Fund 

Debt Service Fund 
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 
Water Operations Fund 
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$ 

Budget 

498,400 $ 
578,915 

6,187,504 

Actual 

498,775 
791,031 

6,396,861 
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Fund -The General Fund was established to account for all revenues and expenditures 
which are not accounted for in other funds. This is the largest fund of the City, providing for the 
majority of the City's revenues, expenditures, and services. The General Fund is supported 
predominately with taxes, licenses, and fees. It funds the operations of the City's Police Department, 
Community Development Department, Mayor/City Council, Street Department, and Administration. 

Capital Improvements Fund - The Capital Improvement Fund was established to account for the 
proceeds of the Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 A and the expenditures for the 
related capital projects. 



CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

TAXES 
Property taxes - current 
Road and bridge tax 
Municipal utility tax 
Telecommunication tax 
Amusement tax 
Hotel/motel tax 
Replacement tax 
Video gaming tax 

Total taxes 

LICENSES, PERMITS, AND FEES 
Business licenses 
Liquor licenses 
Contractors licenses 
Court fines 
Ordinance fines 
Building permits and fees 
Cable TV franchise fees 
PEG fees AT&T 
NICOR franchise fees 
Public hearing fees 
Elevator inspections 
Public improvement permit fees 
Engineering fee reimbursements 
DUI technology fines 
Police special service 
Stormwater management fees 

Total licenses, permits, and fees 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
State income taxes 
Local use tax 
Sales tax 
DADC distribution 
Grants 

Total intergovernmental 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

2014 
Original and 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 1,115,282 $ 1,125,473 
185,000 208,665 

1,040,000 1,154,303 
900,000 787,188 
90,000 87,861 
31,000 48,835 

5,000 7,043 
4360 

3,366,282 3,423,728 

40,000 46,824 
50,000 61,842 
12,000 19,560 

140,000 136,534 
20,000 19,866 
35,000 187,789 

340,000 366,764 
8,234 

40,000 28,606 
4,000 6,201 
4,000 4,925 

175 
20,000 64,940 
6,500 15,409 

125,000 149,840 
100 1,062 

836,600 1,118,571 

2,098,170 2,152,195 
353,376 384,587 

4,900,000 5,025,602 
145,902 
10,671 

7,351,546 7,718,957 

$ 

(This schedule is continued on the following page.) 
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Variance 
Over 2013 

{!!nder} Actual 

10,191 $ 1,636,277 
23,665 193,771 

114,303 1,115,615 
(112,812) 914,897 

(2,139) 78,534 
17,835 48,722 
2,043 5,727 
4,360 

57,446 3,993,543 

6,824 44,953 
11,842 55,100 
7,560 18,420 

(3,466) 151,488 
(134) 25,719 

152,789 140,120 
26,764 332,167 

8,234 12,639 
(11,394) 29,975 

2,201 5,159 
925 5,307 
175 3,790 

44,940 52,221 
8,909 9,880 

24,840 146,470 
962 1,368 

281,971 1,034,776 

54,025 1,990,401 
31,211 351,018 

125,602 5,013,078 
145,902 92,860 
10,671 1,005 

367,411 7,448,362 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
Towing fees 
Police report/prints 
Inspection/tap on/permits 
Rents 
Other reimbursements 
Residential concrete reimbursement 
Reimbursement - rear yard drain 
Maintenance reimbursements 
Mail box reimbursement 
Sales of wood chips 
Operations revenue 

Total charges for services 

INVESTMENT INCOME 
Investment income 

Total investment income 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Street reconstruction program 
Reimbursement - workers compensation 
Impact fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

For theY ear Ended April 30, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

2014 
Original and 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 50,000 $ 70,248 
4,000 6,230 

150 
382,302 494,177 
85,000 234,899 

67,987 
6,274 

10,500 2,792 
2,309 
4,299 
4,817 

531,802 894,182 

10,000 10,255 

10000 10,255 

1,107 
23,427 

5,970 
115,000 18,623 

115,000 49,127 

$ 12,211,230 $ 13,214,820 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Variance 
Over 2013 

(Under} Actual 

$ 20,248 $ 100,098 
2,230 5,505 

150 2,500 
111,875 386,469 
149,899 115,199 
67,987 55,139 

6,274 2,639 
(7,708) 3,751 
2,309 2,303 
4,299 3,890 
4,817 3,636 

362,380 681,129 

255 24,008 

255 24,008 

1,107 
23,427 
5,970 5,263 

(96,377) 39,863 

{651873) 451126 

$ 1,003,590 $ 13,226,944 
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
Administration 

Personnel services 
Salaries 
Overtime 
Social security 
Medicare 
IMRF 
Medicalllife insurance 
Supplemental pensions 

Total personnel services 

Materials and supplies 
Dues and subscriptions 
Liability insurance 
Legal notices 
Maintenance - building 
Maintenance - equipment 
Maintenance - grounds 
Postage/mailings 
Printing and forms 
Public relations 
Rent - equipment 
Supplies - office 
Supplies - other 
Training and education 
Travel/meetings 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Gas and oil 
Vehicle 

Total materials and supplies 

Contractual services 
Audit 
Consultin!Yprofessional 
Contingency 
Janitorial services 

Total contractual services 

Capital outlay 
Equipment 

Total capital outlay 

Total administration 

City Council 
Personnel services 

Salaries 
Social security 
Medicare 

Total personnel services 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

For the Year EndedApril30, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

Original and 
Final 

Budget 

$ 469,194 
2,000 

26,931 
6,832 

66,721 
63,608 
23,984 

6592270 

3,000 
51,623 
8,000 
8,400 

12,800 
7,000 
5,200 
4,000 

29,500 
2,400 

10,000 
500 

4,500 
2,000 

63,000 
3,500 
7,900 
2!000 

225,323 

12,775 
89,377 
10,000 
16,500 

128,652 

14,000 

142000 

1,027,245 

42,750 
2,650 

620 

46,020 

$ 

2014 

Aetual 

475,882 

26,302 
6,939 

65,692 
61,757 
25,182 

661 2754 

4,402 
31,680 
4,036 

596 
5,904 
1,404 
1,945 
2,391 

25,379 
1,755 
8,109 

2,064 
305 

59,896 
4,458 
4,229 
12255 

159,808 

12,775 
87,631 

6,432 
14,184 

1212022 

122219 

122219 

954,803 

42,750 
2,651 

620 

46,021 

$ 

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.) 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

VIU'ianc:e 
Over 

(Under) 

6,688 
(2,000) 

(629) 
107 

(1,029) 
(1,851) 
1,198 

.22484 

1,402 
(19,943) 

(3,964) 
(7,804) 
(6,896) 
(5,596) 
(3,255) 
(1,609) 
(4,121) 

(645) 
(1,891) 

(500) 
(2,436) 
(1,695) 
(3,104) 

958 
(3,671) 
(745~ 

(65,515~ 

(1,746) 
(3,568) 
(2,316~ 

(72630) 

(12781) 

(12781) 

(72,442) 

$ 

2013 
Actual 

457,488 
84 

23,473 
6,109 

59,593 
60,139 
24,806 

631 2692 

2,818 
30,331 
7,052 
2,218 

10,794 
4,166 
6,001 
2,529 

27,518 
2,412 
9,852 

42 
2,885 

262 
59,609 
3,102 
7,227 

360 

179,178 

12,200 
86,690 
3,496 

14,334 

1162720 

927,590 

42,750 
2,807 

657 

46214 
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) 
City Council (Continued) 

Materials and supplies 
Board and commissions 
Cable operations 
Dues and subscriptions 
Liability insurance 
Public relations 
Supplies - other 
Training and education 
TraveL'meetings 

Total materials and supplies 

Contractual services 
Consulting/professional 
ToUey contracts 

Total contractual services 

Total city council 

Community development 
Personnel services 

Salaries 
Overtime 
Social security 
Medicare 
JMRF 
MedicaL'life insurance 
Supplemental pensions 

Total personnel services 

Materials and supplies 
Boards and commissions 
Dues and subscriptions 
Liabilities insurance 
Maintenance -vehicles 
Printing and forms 
Supplies - office 
Training and educational 
TraveL'meetings 
Gas and oil 

Total materials and supplies 

Contractual services 
Consulting/professional 
Consulting/professional reimbursable 

Total contractual services 

Total community development 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With PriorY ear Actual) 

Original and 
Final 

Budget 

$ 2,500 
2,500 

100 
42,806 

2,000 

1,000 

50,906 

15,000 
900 

15,900 

112,826 

283,173 
500 

16,435 
4,135 

29,335 
40,178 
3,600 

377 356 

2,400 
650 

48,110 
1,200 
2,641 

450 
500 
200 

2,000 

58,151 

31,500 
50,400 

81,900 

517,407 

2014 

Actual 

$ 1,291 $ 

65 
31,930 

400 

20 

33,706 

3,866 
246 

4,112 

83,839 

285,227 
280 

15,531 
3,983 

38,651 
39,261 

2,492 

385 425 

1,550 
470 

33,445 
324 

1,112 

328 
127 
338 

37,694 

42,425 
79,529 

121 954 

545,073 

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.) 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Variance 
Over 

(Under) 

(1,209) $ 
(2,500) 

(35) 
(10,876) 
(1,600) 

(1,000) 
20 

(17,200} 

(11,134) 
~654} 

(11,788) 

(28,987} 

2,054 
(220) 
(904) 
(152) 

9,316 
(917) 

(1,108} 

8 069 

(850) 
(180) 

(14,665) 
(876) 

(1 ,529) 
(450) 
(172) 
(73) 

~1,662} 

(20,457} 

10,925 
29,129 

40 054 

27,666 

2013 
Actual 

1,335 
34,768 

34,485 
1,429 

45 

97 

72,159 

3,045 
249 

3,294 

121,667 

278,924 
504 

15,384 
3,941 

35,329 
38,253 
2,400 

374,735 

1,379 
453 

33,010 
1,090 

985 
114 

160 
1,483 

38,674 

46,838 
48,084 

94,922 

508,331 



CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES ·BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) 
Business district 

Personnel services 
Liability insurance 

Total professional services 

Contractual services 
Maintenance · grounds 
Utilities 
Maintenance - equipment 

Total contractual services 

Total business district 

Subtotal general government 

Less reimbursements from Water Fund 

Total general government 

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS 
Public works 

Personnel services 
Salaries 
Overtime 
Social security 
Medicare 
IMRF 
MedicaL'life insurance 
Supplemental pensions 

Total personnel services 

Materials and supplies 
Liability insurance 
Maintenance - building 
Maintenance • equipment 
Maintenance • vehicles 
Postage/mailings 
Rent - equipment 
Supplies • office 
Supplies • other 
Small tools and equipment 
Training and education 
TraveL'meetings 
Uniforms 
Utilities 
Gas and oil 

Total materials and supplies 

Contractual services 
Consulting/professional 
Forestry 
Street light operation and maintenance 
Tree trim • removal 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With PriorY ear Actual) 

Original and 
Final 

Budget 

$ 4,410 $ 

4,410 

41,000 
10,000 
17,500 

68,500 

72,910 

1,730,388 

(250,000) 

1,480,388 

501,841 
75,000 
57,464 
13,439 

121,499 
161,528 

2,500 

933,271 

63,073 
132,836 
23,050 
26,000 

1,000 
23,650 

4,100 
41,760 

5,600 
8,575 

6,446 
3,100 

82,775 

421 965 

4,000 
47,314 
96,400 

120,800 

2014 

A dual 

4410 $ 

4,410 

13,180 
15,519 
2,643 

31,342 

35,752 

1,619,467 

(250,000) 

1,369,467 

515,582 
134,502 

41,521 
9,709 

93,100 
134,693 

3,415 

932,522 

54,543 
118,469 

36,190 
51,140 

470 
29,456 

3,194 
38,392 
5,693 
1,729 

80 
4,159 
5,666 

83,316 

432497 

7,027 
46,096 
77,255 

108,921 

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.) 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Variance 
Over 

(Under) 

(27,820) 
5,519 

(14,857) 

(37,158) 

(37,158) 

(110,921) 

(110,921) 

13,741 
59,502 

(15,943) 
(3,730) 

(28,399) 
(26,835) 

915 

(749) 

(8,530) 
(14,367) 
13,140 
25,140 

(530) 
5,806 
(906) 

(3,368) 
93 

(6,846) 
80 

(2,287) 
2,566 

541 

10,532 

3,027 
(1,218) 

(19,145) 
(11,879) 

$ 

1013 
Actual 

3,500 

3,500 

15,628 
10,992 

469 

27,089 

30,589 

1,588,177 

(250,000) 

1,338,177 

517,169 
40,605 
32,362 
7,576 

70,604 
120,664 

3,369 

792,349 

52,268 
45,091 
20,443 
30,812 

1,680 
11,537 
4,461 

27,726 
3,969 
1,109 

5,043 
3,366 

67 882 

275,387 

44,281 
20,898 
98,753 
84,812 
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued) 
Public works (Continued) 

Contractual services (Continued) 
Residential concrete program 
Rear yard drain projects 
Street sweeping 
Mosquito abatement 
Drainage projects 

Total contractual services 

Capital outlay 
Equipment 
Street rehabilitation 

Total capital outlay 

Total public wmks 

Total highways and streets 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
Police department 

Personnel services 
Salaries 
Salaries - officers 
Overtime 
Social security 
Medicare 
IMRF 
Medical/life insurance 
Police pension 
Supplemental pensions 

Total personnel services 

Materials and supplies 
Animal control 
Auxiliary police 
Boards and commissions 
Dues and subscriptions 
Investigation and equipment 
Liability insurance 
Maintenance - building 
Maintenance - equipment 
Maintenance - vehicles 
Postage/mailings 
Printing and forms 
Public relations 
Rent - equipment 
Supplies - office 
Training and education 
TraveVmeetings 
Telephone 

For1he Year EndedApril30, 2014 
(Wi1h Prior Year Actual) 

Original and 
Finai 

Budget 

$ 

35,843 
42,114 
34,500 

380 971 

135,000 

135,000 

1,871,207 

1,871,207 

423,999 
3,321,666 

460,750 
24,529 
50,096 
74,146 

515,500 
1,115,282 

50,000 

6,035,968 

2,000 
8,000 
6,500 
4,000 

57,615 
219,314 

15,400 
30,800 
4,200 
4,000 
5,000 

172,345 
6,000 

31,410 
10,100 
12,700 

$ 

2014 

Actual 

58,795 $ 

23,282 
40,887 
28,290 

390 553 

112,200 
1,719 

113,919 

1,869,491 

1,869,491 

491,656 
3,206,279 

549,883 
26,965 
53,983 
63,360 

421,107 
1,125,401 

45,483 

5,984,117 

765 
608 

3,867 
1,653 

47,049 
197,760 

11 
8,527 

43,508 
1,364 
2,480 
3,090 

700 
6,591 

22,331 
9,541 

11,055 

(This schedule is continued on the following page.) 
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Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Variance 
Over 

(Under) 

58,795 

(12,561) 
(1,227) 
{6,210} 

9,582 

(22,800) 
1,719 

{21,081} 

{1,716l 

{1 ,716} 

67,657 
(115,387) 

89,133 
2,436 
3,887 

(10,786) 
(94,393) 
10,119 
{917l 

(51,851) 

(1,235) 
(7,392) 
(2,633) 
(2,347) 

(10,566) 
(21,554) 

11 
(6,873) 
12,708 
(2,836) 
(1,520) 
(1,910) 

(171,645) 
591 

(9,079) 
(559) 

(1,645) 

$ 

2013 
Actual 

69,049 
511 

23,863 
40,887 
23,497 

406,551 

145,834 

145,834 

1,620,121 

1,620,121 

451,217 
3,232,947 

404,861 
26,555 
50,034 
63,854 

445,341 
1,092,729 

47,614 

5,815,152 

190 
3,507 

16,039 
2,279 
9,438 

198,776 
560 

20,165 
36,056 
4,318 
1,123 
4,007 

5,400 
15,269 
4,428 

10,761 
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 

PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued) 
Police department (Continued) 

Materials and supplies (Continued) 
Unifonns 
Utilities 
Gas and oil 

Total materials and supplies 

Contrnctual services 
Consulting/professional 
Dumeglfiat/child center 

Total contractual services 

Capital outlay 
Equipment 

Total capital outlay 

Total police department 

Total public safety 

DEBT SERVICE 
Principal 
Interest 

Total debt service 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With PriorY ear Actual) 

2014 
Original and 

Final 
Bud&!! Actual 

$ 36,100 $ 40,940 
7,000 7,723 

136,000 110,960 

7682484 5202523 

360,623 359,243 
24,680 242680 

3852303 383,923 

8,800 42011 

8,800 4,011 

7,198,555 6,8922574 

7,198,555 62892,574 

160,500 
4,838 

165 338 

$ 10,550,150 $ 10,296,870 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
-56-

$ 

$ 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Variance 
Over 2013 

(Underl Actual 

4,840 $ 26,474 
723 5,530 

(25,040} 128,786 

(2472961} 493 2106 

(1,380) 343,209 
26,240 

(12380) 369,449 

(4z789} 91,207 

~4,789l 91,207 

(305,981} 627682914 

(305,981) 627682914 

160,500 160,500 
4,838 4592 

165 338 165,092 

(253,280} $ 9,892,304 

8_9 



CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30, 20 14 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

2014 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Original and Variance 
Final 

Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 202,320 $ 204,160 
Intergovernmental 342,214 
Charges for services 37,500 85,093 
Investment income 10 000 49,424 

Total revenues 249,820 680,891 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Highways and streets 
Contractual services 45,500 65,369 

Capital outlay 2,969,530 2,742,365 
Debt service 

Principal payments 202,194 135,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 67747 

Total expenditures 3,217,224 3,010,481 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES {2,967!404) {2,329,590) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 2,900,000 3,747,422 
Proceeds from sale of assets 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,9002000 3,747,422 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ {67,404) 1,417,832 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 3,811,097 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 5,228,929 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
-57-

Over 2013 
(Under~ Actual 

$ 1,840 $ 203,097 
342,214 

47,593 83,111 
39,424 54124 

431,071 340,332 

19,869 52,278 
(227,165) 2,889,043 

(67,194) 130,000 
67747 72 622 

{206,743) 3,143,943 

637!814 {2!803,611) 

847,422 2,800,000 
1 950 000 

847,422 4,750,000 

$ 1,485,236 1,946,389 

1,864,708 

$ 3,811,097 



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investtnentincorne 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

2014 
Original and 

Final 
Bud~et Actual 

$ 498,400 $ 502,925 
1403 

498,400 504,328 

498,400 410,000 
88 775 

498,400 498,775 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 5,553 

FUND BALANCE, MAY l 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

7,860 

$ 13,413 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
-58-

Variance 
Over 

(Under~ 

$ 4,525 
1,403 

5,928 

(88,400) 
88 775 

375 

$ 5,553 

2013 
Actual 

$ 496,206 
1,822 

498,028 

390,000 
104 375 

494,375 

3,653 

4207 

$ 7,860 



Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund- The Motor Fuel Tax Fund is used to account for state-shared motor fuel 
tax revenues that are legally restricted to maintenance and construction of streets, sidewalks, 
alleys, and signals. 

Special Service Area Fund - A Special Service Area (SSA) is created to fund improvements 
which benefit an identifiable segment of the City, with a special property tax levied on and 
restricted to the benefited properties. SSA #1 was created to handle maintenance of the wetlands 
in the Tara Hill development. 

Federal Equitable Sharing Fund- The Federal Equitable Sharing Fund is used to account for the 
revenues and expenditures of restricted forfeited money provided through the Federal Equitable 
Sharing program. 

Drug Seizure Fund - When property or money is seized by the Police Department in relation to 
violations of drug laws, the Department is entitled to receive a portion of the property or money 
to offset the cost of drug enforcement. Requirements which govern forfeiture activities require 
these monies be segregated and restricted for drug enforcement purposes. 



ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 

Intergovernmental 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

April 30, 2014 

SI!ecial Revenue 
Federal 

Motor Special Equitable 
Fuel Tax Service Area Sharing 

$ 118,593 $ 11,926 $ 76,837 

40716 

$ 1592309 $ 112926 $ 76,837 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 

Special service area 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 

Total fund balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
AND FUND BALANCES 

$ 62854 $ 22800 $ 

6,854 2 800 

9,126 

152,455 

1522455 92126 

$ 159,309 $ II 2926 $ 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
-59-

76,837 

76,837 

762837 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Drug 
Seizure Total 

$ 5,351 $ 212,707 

40,716 

$ 5,351 $ 253,423 

$ 182 $ 9,836 

182 9,836 

9,126 
5,169 82,006 

152,455 

5,169 243,587 

$ 52351 $ 2532423 



CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHk'fGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

Sf!edal Revenue 
Federal 

Motor Special Equitable 
Fuel Tax Service Area Sharing 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ $ 5,061 $ 
Intergovernmental 647,807 84,689 
Investment income 2,970 111 59 

Total revenues 650,777 5172 84,748 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Highways and streets 791,031 4,978 
Public safety 7,911 

Total expenditures 791,031 4,978 7,911 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES ~140,2542 194 76,837 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (140,254) 194 76,837 

FUND BALANCES, MAY 1 292,709 8,932 

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30 $ 152,455 $ 9,126 $ 761837 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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$ 

$ 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Drug 
Seizure Total 

$ 5,061 
732,496 

360 3,500 

360 741 057 

796,009 
7,911 

803,920 

360 (62,863} 

(5,859} (5,859} 

(5,859) (5,859) 

(5,499) (68,722) 

10,668 312,309 

5i169 $ 243i587 



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND 

REVENUES 
Intergovenunental 

MFT allotment 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Highways and streets 
Commodities 
Wages 
Contractual services 

Total expenditures 

For the Year Ended Apri130, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

2014 
Original 

and Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 519,021 $ 647,807 
2,970 

519,021 650,777 

228,915 294,464 
300,000 367,440 

50,000 129,127 

578,915 791,031 

$ 

NETCHANGEINFUNDBALANCE $ (59,894) (140,254) $ 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

292,709 

$ 152,455 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Variance 
Over 

(Under) 

128,786 
2,970 

131,756 

65,549 
67,440 
79,127 

212,116 

(80,360) 

2013 
Actual 

$ 634,266 
3,805 

638,071 

232,494 
322,692 

555,186 

82,885 

209,824 

$ 292,709 



Preliminary and Tentative 
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only 

SCHEDULE OF REVENGES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FIDID 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Contractual services 

Total expenditures 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

2014 
Original and 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 5,000 $ 5,061 
111 

5,000 5,172 

8,400 4,978 

8,400 4,978 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (3,400) 194 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

8,932 

$ 9,126 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Variance 
Over 

(Under) 

$ 61 
111 

172 

(3,422) 

(3,422) 

$ 3,594 

2013 
Actual 

$ 5,031 
146 

5,177 

4,982 

4,982 

195 

8,737 

$ 8,932 



Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

~ORENTERPIDSEFUND 

Water Operations Fund- to account for the financing of self-supporting municipal activities which 
render services generally on a user charge basis to the general public. The significant characteristic of 
an enterprise fund is that the accounting system makes it possible to determine whether that 
particular service area is operated at a profit or a loss in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles followed by private business concerns. 



OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 

Water sales 
Inspections/tap on/permits 
Sale of meters 
Other water sales 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

WATER OPERATIONS FUND 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With Prior Year Actual) 

Original and 
Final 

Budget 

$ 6,318,567 $ 
4,000 
3,500 
4,500 

6,330,567 

2014 

Actual 

6,007,223 
13,987 
3,241 
3,347 

6,027,798 

EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION 
Personnel services 

Salaries 453,325 462,986 
Overtime 50,000 129,715 
Social security 34,306 31,096 
Medicare 8,023 7,291 
IMRF 71,552 77,508 
Medical/life insW'l!Ilce 110,584 80,028 
Supplemental pensions 2,400 1,385 

Total personnel services 730,190 790,009 

Materials and supplies 
Liability insW'l!Ilce 194,311 183,625 
Maintenance - building 62,770 49,602 
Maintenance - equipment 12,100 15,000 
Maintenance - water system 149,250 152,945 
Postage 1,000 48 
Quality controls 16,390 13,273 
Service charge 250,000 250,000 
Supplies - operation 7,160 773 
Training and education 5,439 393 
Telephone 10,749 10,134 
Uniforms 3,100 2,875 
Utilities 48,825 42,443 
Vehicle (gas and oil) 22,575 14,999 

Total materials and supplies 783,669 736,110 

Contractual 
Audit 10,000 10,000 
Consulting/professional 13,000 8,014 
Leak detection 20,100 12,130 
Data processing 152,328 171,912 
DuPage Water Commission 3,951,321 4,135,356 

Total contractual 4,146,749 4,337,412 

$ 

(This schedule is continued on the following page.) 
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Variance 
Over 2013 

(!!nderl Actual 

(311,344) $ 5,714,354 
9,987 24,502 
(259) 4,828 

!J,153} 8,055 

(302,769} 5,751,739 

9,661 459,195 
79,715 27,999 
(3,210) 30,592 

(732) 7,155 
5,956 50,451 

(30,556) 71,392 
~1,015} 1,200 

59 819 647 984 

(10,686) 119,280 
(13,168) 22,039 

2,900 21,359 
3,695 125,074 
(952) 501 

(3,117) 9,921 
250,000 

(6,387) 256 
(5,046) 1,415 

(615) 9,828 
(225) 2,318 

(6,382) 46,681 
{7,576} 23,843 

{47,559} 632,515 

10,000 
(4,986) 7,605 
(7,970) 14,718 
19,584 153,109 

184,035 3,527,280 

190,663 3,712,712 



Preliminary and Tentative 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSIDON- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 

WATER OPERATIONS FUND 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION (Continued) 
Capital outlay 

Equipment 
Water meters 
Infrasttucture 
Hydrant painting 
Capital improvements 
SCADA system 

Total capital outlay 

Total operating expenses excluding 
depreciation 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous income 
Debt service 

Principal repayment 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) BUDGETARY BASIS 

Adjustments to GAAP basis 
Principal repayment 
Depreciation 

Total adjustments to GAAP basis 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSmON, MAY 1 

Prior period adjustment 

NETPOSmON, MAY 1, RESTATED 

NET POSITION, APRIL 30 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 
(With PriorY ear Actual) 

Orlnginal and 
Final 

Budget 

$ 72,000 $ 
25,000 
10,000 
41,000 
70,000 

218 000 

5,878,608 

451!959 

4,000 

(198,274) 
(110,622) 

(3041896) 

$ 1471063 

$ 

2014 

Actual 

149,060 
14,975 
22,303 
35,520 

850 

222 708 

62086J39 

(581441) 

11,367 
71,798 

(200,000) 

(1101622} 

(2271457) 

(285,898) 

200,000 
(335,144) 

(135,144) 

(421,042) 

5,939,599 

519391599 

5,518,557 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Variance 
Over 2013 

!!!nderl Actual 

$ 77,060 $ 68,987 
(10,025) 14,967 
12,303 
(5,480) 

(69,150) 
22200 

4708 106 154 

2071631 510991365 

(5101400) 6521374 

7,367 18,592 
71,798 9,151 

(1,726) (190,000) 
(161,1202 

77,439 (323,377) 

$ (432,961) 328,997 

190,000 
(3391134) 

{1491134) 

1791863 

5,785,560 

(25,824) 

51759,736 

$ 5,939,599 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Agency Funds - to account for amounts held in deposit. 

JOO 
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COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUNDS 

All Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others 
Impact fees payable 
Deposits payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Impact Fees Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others 
Impact fees payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Darien Escrow Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Deposits payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

For the Year Ended April30, 2014 

Balances 
Ma~l Additions 

$ 13,244 $ 5,280 

$ 13,244 $ 5,280 

$ 10,901 $ 142 
2,317 5,138 

26 

$ 13,244 $ 5,280 

$ 13,218 $ 5 280 

$ 13 218 $ 5 280 

$ 10,901 $ 142 
2,317 5,138 

$ 13,218 $ 5,280 

$ 26 $ 

$ 26 $ 

$ 26 $ 

$ 26 $ 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Balances 
Deletions A~ril30 

$ $ 18,524 

$ $ 18,524 

$ $ 11,043 
7,455 

26 

$ $ 18,524 

$ $ 18,498 

$ $ 18,498 

$ $ 11,043 
7,455 

$ $ 18,498 

$ $ 26 

$ $ 26 

$ $ 26 

$ $ 26 
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SUPPLEMENTAL DATA 
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Date oflssue 
Date of Maturity 
Authorized Issue 
Interest Rates 
Interest Dates 
Principal Maturity Date 
Payable at 

Fiscal 
Year Principal 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS 
GE1'11'ERAL OBLIGATION WATER BONDS, SERIES 2006 

Apri130, 2014 

July 1, 2006 
December 15,2025 
$3,900,000 
4.10% to 4.30% 
June 15 and December 15 
December 15 
Bank One 

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Interest Due on 
Interest Total June15 Amount December 15 Amount 

2015 $ 185,000 $ 7,631 $ 192,631 2014 $ 3,815 2014 $ 3,816 

$ 185,000 $ 7,631 $ 192,631 $ 3,815 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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$ 3,816 
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Date of Issue 
Date of Maturity 
Authorized Issue 
Interest Rates 
Interest Dates 
Principal Maturity Date 
Payable at 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

WNG-TERM DEBT REQUIREME~"'TS 
GENERAL OBUGATION BONDS, SERIES 2007B 

April30,2014 

May 15,2007 
December 15, 2017 
$2,600,000 
4.00% 
June 15 and December 15 
December 15 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. 

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS 

Fiscal 
Year Principal 

2015 $ 425,000 $ 
2016 440,000 
2017 460,000 
2018 475,000 

$ 1,800,000 $ 

Interest Total June15 

72,000 $ 497,000 2014 $ 
55,000 495,000 2015 
37,400 497,400 2016 
19,000 494,000 2017 

183,400 $ 1,983,400 $ 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Interest Due on 
Amount December 15 Amount 

36,000 2014 $ 36,000 
27,500 2015 27,500 
18,700 2016 18,700 
9,500 2017 9,500 

91,700 $ 91,700 

l Oot 



Date oflssue 
Date ofMaturity 
Authorized Issue 
Interest Rates 
Interest Dates 
Principal Maturity Date 
Payable at 

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS 

WNG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2008 

April 30, 2014 

June 15, 2008 
January 1, 2024 
$2,370,000 
3.50% - 4.00% 
January 1 and July 1 
January 1 
Harris Bank 

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS 

Fiscal 
Year Principal 

2015 $ 140,000 $ 
2016 145,000 
2017 155,000 
2018 160,000 
2019 165,000 
2020 170,000 
2021 175,000 
2022 185,000 
2023 190,000 
2024 115,000 

$ 1,600,000 $ 

Interest Total Julyl 

62,256 $ 202,256 2014 $ 
57,006 202,006 2015 
51,570 206,570 2016 
45,564 205,564 2017 
39,362 204,362 2018 
32,968 202,968 2019 
26,380 201,380 2020 
19,600 204,600 2021 
12,200 202,200 2022 
4,600 119,600 2023 

351,506 $ 1,951,506 $ 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Interest Due on 
Amount Jan 1 Amount 

31,128 2015 $ 31,128 
28,503 2016 28,503 
25,785 2017 25,785 
22,782 2018 22,782 
19,681 2019 19,681 
16,484 2020 16,484 
13,190 2021 13,190 
9,800 2022 9,800 
6,100 2023 6,100 
2,300 2024 2,300 

175,753 $ 175,753 
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LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS 
GENERAL OBUGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012 

April30, 2014 

Date oflssue July 12, 2012 
Date of Maturity December 15,2025 
Authorized Issue $2,810,000 
Interest Rates 2.00% - 3.50% 
Interest Dates June 15 and December 15 
Principal Maturity Date December 15 
Payable at Bank of New York Mellon 

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS 

Fiscal 
Year Principal 

2015 $ 20,000 $ 
2016 215,000 
2017 220,000 
2018 225,000 
2019 230,000 
2020 240,000 
2021 245,000 
2022 260,000 
2023 265,000 
2024 275,000 
2025 285,000 
2026 290,000 

$ 2,770,000 $ 

Interest Total Jun 15 

84,125 $ 104,125 2014 $ 
83,725 298,725 2015 
79,425 299,425 2016 
75,025 300,025 2017 
68,275 298,275 2018 
61,375 301,375 2019 
54,175 299,175 2020 
46,825 306,825 2021 
39,025 304,025 2022 
29,750 304,750 2023 
20,125 305,125 2024 
10,150 300,150 2025 

652,000 $ 3,422,000 $ 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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Interest Due on 
Amount Decl5 

42,063 2014 
41,863 2015 
39,713 2016 
37,513 2017 
34,138 2018 
30,688 2019 
27,088 2020 
23,413 2021 
19,513 2022 
14,875 2023 
10,063 2024 
5,075 2025 

326,005 

Amount 

$ 42,062 
41,862 
39,712 
37,512 
34,137 
30,687 
27,087 
23,412 
19,512 
14,875 
10,062 
5,075 

$ 325,995 



City of Darien 
Minutes of the Administrative Finance Committee 

April 7, 2014 

The Meeting was called to order by Alderman Ted Schauer at 6:02 pm. Committee 
members Alderman Joe Kenny and Alderman Tina Beilke were present. Staff members 
present included City Administrator Bryon V ana and Assistant City Administrator Scott 
Coren. 

A resolution agreeing to work with the Village of Woodridge and Village of 
Downers Grove to provide a fireworks display at Ziegfield Troy Golf Course on the 
Fourth of July by contributing an amount not to exceed $8,000 

Assistant Administrator Coren said the City of Darien contributed to a fireworks display 
with the Village of Woodridge and the Village of Downers Grove until 2009, when the 
City Council eliminated the expense from the budget in response to reduced revenues 
during the recession. Without Darien's contribution, Woodridge and Downers Grove 
originally reduced the scope of the show to keep their costs level, but after a few years 
decided the show needed to go back to the original length, with each entity contributing 
more. This year, the two municipalities requested Darien resume contributing to the 
show, as Darien residents watch the show and receive the benefit. The City Council 
agreed to put $8,000 in the draft budget to prepare for this expense. 

The Village of Woodridge traditionally leads this show, as the firing area is within their 
jurisdiction. They have sent out a request for proposal to fireworks display companies, 
with an amount not to exceed $24,000. Their request is for the City of Darien to 
contribute $8,000, which is one third of the overall cost. Years ago, the formula for 
contributing to the fireworks was based on population, but the request at this time to split 
the cost equally in thirds. 

Alderman Beilke made a motion to approve, Alderman Kenny seconded the motion, and 
it passed 3-0. 

Minutes 

Alderman Kenny made a motion to approve the minutes as amended, Alderman Beilke 
seconded the motion, and it passed 3-0. 

Other Business 

Alderman Kenny discussed an item on the Treasurer's report, in which the chairman of 
the Citizen of the Year committee was reimbursed approximately $1,000 for costs related 
to the Citizen of the Year dinner. Staff offered to pay for items directly or in groups as 

107 



the costs came in, but the chairman preferred to do it all at once. Alderman Kenny asked 
staff to encourage the chairman to pay for items more frequently with the city credit card. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business Alderman Kenny made a motion to adjo~ with a 
second by Alderman Schauer. The motion carried 3-0 at 6:23pm. 

Approved: 

Ted Schauer, Chairman 

Joseph Kenny, Member 

Tina Beilke, Member 
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City of Darien 
Minutes of the Administrative Finance Committee 

July 7, 2014 

The Meeting was called to order by Alderman Ted Schauer at 6:09 pm. Committee 
members Alderman Joe Kenny and Alderman Tina Beilke were present. Staff members 
present included City Administrator Bryon V ana, Assistant City Administrator Scott 
Coren, and Director of Municipal Services Dan Gombac. 

Plainfield Water Main Project 

Director Gombac described the importance of the additional water main on Plainfield 
Road, which is over 50 years old and would be very difficult to repair in the future. 
Adding this quantity at this time would allow DuPage County to bury it at this time and 
avoid future problems. 

Alderman Schauer made a motion to approve, Alderman Kenny seconded the motion, 
and it passed 3-0. 

Copier Purchase 

Assistant Administrator Coren went over the bidding process, which included eight 
different companies bidding on each of three new copiers that need to be replaced in the 
police department and municipal services. Three different companies offered the lowest 
price for each machine. Staff recommended going for the lowest priced machine that met 
minimum specifications. 

Alderman Schauer made a motion to approve the minutes as amended, Alderman Beilke 
seconded the motion, and it passed 3-0. 

Website Redevelopment 

The aldermen reviewed two different website proposals from Municipal Web Services 
and CivicPlus. These two companies had extensive experience with municipal web 
development, which involves a large number of public contacts. The aldermen selected 
Municipal Web Services, which provided the lowest price for the project and had many 
other successful municipal partners. 

The committee provided many ideas and feedback for the upcoming site, which will be 
brought together during the design phase of the site. 

Alderman Schauer made a motion to approve the minutes as amended, Alderman Beilke 
seconded the motion, and it passed 3-0. 
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Adjournment 

There being no further business Alderman Kenny made a motion to adjourn, with a 
second by Alderman Schauer. The motion carried 3-0 at 6:55pm. 

Approved: 

Ted Schauer, Chairman 

Joseph Kenny, Member 

Tina Beilke, Member 
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